1-96-01 EPA 550/9-81-323

ar ana ing prina. Tanàna ing pangana

NOISE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY EVALUATION FOR SUPERSONIC TRANSPORT CATEGORY AIRCRAFT

July 1980

Prepared for: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control

(

a kanganga

RECT CODV AVAILANT

3

Under Contract No. EPA 68-01-4488

This report has been approved for general availability. The contents of this report reflect the views of the contractor, who is responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the data presented herein, and do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of EPA. This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation.

1-96-01 II-A-155

and a second and the second second

ĔΡΑ

NOISE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY EVALUATION FOR SUPERSONIC TRANSPORT CATEGORY AIRCRAFT

July 1980

t

Prepared for:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control

Under Contract No. EPA 68-01-4488

This report has been approved for general availability. The contents of this report reflect the views of the contractor, who is responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the data presented herein, and do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of EPA. This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation.

, a u	~	
r	· `	

	TECHNICAL REPOR (Please read Instructions on the rever	T DATA se bejore completing
1. REPORT NO. EPA 550/9-81-323	2.	3. RECIPIENT'S ACCESSION NO.
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE Noise Control Techn Supersonic Transpor	ology Evaluation for t Category Aircraft	5. REPORT DATE July 1980 8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION CODE
7. AUTHOR(S)		8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NO.
9. PERFORMING ORGANIZATIO	DN NAME AND ADDRESS	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT NO.
50 Moulton Street Cambridge, MA 0223	Whan Inc.	11. CONTRACT/GRANT NO. EPA 68-01-4488
12. SPONSORING AGENCY NAM Office of Noise Aba U.S. Environmental 1 Washington, DC 2044	ME AND ADDRESS tement and Control Protection Agency 60	13. TYPE OF REPORT AND PERIOD COVERED Final July 1980 14. SPONSORING AGENCY CODE EPA/ONAC ANR-471
15. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES		······································

16. ABSTRACT

Noise control technology applicable to supersonic transport (SST) category aircraft is evaluated in view of the restraints of the Noise Control Act of 1972, which restricts both the EPA and the FAA to noise regulations that meet considerations of "safety, economic reasonableness, technological practicability, and appropriateness to type of aircraft." The effect of such constraints on the design goal for second-generation SSTs is considered.

The report contains five sections. Section 2 develops a basic perspective on the noise of subsonic and supersonic aircraft and the general relationships between their airframe and engine performance characteristics, noise certification standards, and noise impact. Section 3 summarizes the status of individual elements of noise control technology including engine, aerodynamics, and operational procedures. Section 4 reviews some of the integrated airframe-engine noise integration studies, and Section 5 attempts to summarize where noise and the SST stand with respect to technology.

This report is based on information developed and made available prior to Fall 1978.

17.	KEY WORDS AND DOCUMENT ANALYSIS								
<u>a.</u>	DESCRIPTORS	D.IDENTIFIERS/OPEN ENDED TERMS	c. COSATI Field/Group						
SST noise supersoni noise red regulatio	e in vicinity of airports, Le, subsonic aircraft, Luction technology, ons								
18. DISTRIBUT	ION STATEMENT	19. SECURITY CLASS (This Report) Unclassified	21. NO. OF PAGES 172						
Kelease U	nlimited	20. SECURITY CLASS (This page) Unclassified	22. PRICE						

EFA Form 2229-1 (5-73)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

				page
TABLE OF	CON	ITENTS	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	. 111
SUMMARY.		• • • • •		1-1
SECTION	1	INTR	ODUCTION	1-4
		1.1	Background	1 . 5
		1.2	Frame of Reference for Technology Definition	1-9
		1.3	Organization and Time Frame of the Report	1-11
	2	PERS AIRC	PECTIVE: SUPERSONIC VS. SUBSONIC RAFT PERFORMANCE AND AIRPORT NOISE	2 - 1
		2.1	Performance	2-1
	•	2.2	Noise	2-8
	3	TECHI	NOLOGY APPLICABLE TO NOISE CONTROL	3-1
		3.1_	Aerodynamic Performance	3-2
		3.2	Structural Designs and Materials	3-8
		3.3	Propulsion System Performance and Noise	3-15
		3.4	Propulsion System Noise Control	3-36
		3.5	Control of Propulsion/Flight Parameters	3-58
		3.6	Aerodynamic (Airframe) Noise	3-67
	4	AIRFE	RAME-PROPULSION INTEGRATION AND NOISE	4-1
		4.1	NASA Reference Aircraft Designs	4-5
		4,2	Integrated Airframe-Propulsion Noise Studies	4-20
		4.3	Potential Impact vs. Flight Procedures	4-41
	5	CONCI	USIONS	5-1
FERENCES	• • • •			R-1

iii

يسورين ا

1

and the second second

SUMMARY

The assessment of technology related to the noise of future Supersonic Transport Category Aircraft is a most difficult and complex task. The difficulties result from the plethora of data and opinions which have come from a wide variety of groups addressing an equally wide variety of engine and airframe design concepts and design time frames. The only consensus of opinion and evidence appears to be that the Concorde and its forseeable derivatives cannot be expected to meet the FAR Part 36 Stage 2 noise limits.

For new designs initiated in the near future, opinions diverge, although much of the opinion of USA technical personnel is that the Stage 2 noise limits can be met, perhaps with only a small economic penalty. However, there is concern relative to the adequacy of the design margins required to insure meeting of guaranteed or certificated noise performance requirements.

For new designs initiated in the mid 1980's there appears little doubt that the Stage 2 noise limits can be met, again with a small economic penalty, although the vehicle would have much better overall economic potential than either Concorde or the best new design initiated in the near future. Such new designs incorporate "future" or "Class 2 and 3" technology which offer significant improvements in overall vehicle aerodynamic, engine, and noise performance.

There is only a small amount of evidence and opinion that new designs of the mid 1980's could meet the Stage 3 noise limits. This lack of evidence and positive opinion results primarily from three factors:

- The majority of the design and conceptual development studies have focused on Stage 2 limits as either a goal or constraint, and only a few studies have examined the implications of meeting Stage 3 limits. Stage 3 limits impose relatively more difficulty on SST category aircraft than on the subsonic category aircraft, whose aerodynamic performance and engine exhaust velocity requirements are more condusive to quieter operation.
- 2) The Stage 3 limits and test requirements, as currently stated, are based on the performance characteristics (aerodynamic, engine, and noise) of subsonic aircraft with high bypass engines. Their intent is to constrain the noise of aircraft, not only within the measurement boundary, but beyond, as well, to a much larger area when the majority of the noise impact is experienced. However, because of their origin they do not necessarily provide an appropriate design constraint to minimize total noise impact of an aircraft category that has rather different performance characteristics.
- 3) There appears to be no generalized conceptual noise goal for supersonic transport category aircraft which relates SST noise performance (or impact) and its probable operational time frame with the needs of the airports from which it might operate.

Each of these three factors should be addressed, as appropriate, in the various R & D programs which are related to supersonic cruise vehicles. The goal of this effort should be to produce the information necessary to develop noise rules

which lead towards optimization of the design performance of supersonic transport category aircraft with respect to the environmental needs.

Unless these factors are addressed in a timely fashion, the possibility of initiation of an aircraft design that will only meet Stage 2 limits is increased. The result could easily be the development of an aircraft which begins operation in the 1990's with a noise impact considerably in excess of any other new aircraft of its time frame. Operation of such an aircraft could not only negate much of the progress made in reducing the impact of aircraft noise on airport neighbors, but also could provide an obvious focal point for the public's concern for noise reduction. This possible outcome could lead to operational restrictions that would severely penalize the economic and public transport service potential of the aircraft.

1-3

 $(1-\infty)^{-1} = (1-1)^{-1} = (1-$

1. INTRODUCTION

This report has been developed in response to an Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) task order requesting an evaluation of noise control technology applicable to Supersonic Transport (SST) category aircraft. To date, SST category aircraft have tended to be noisier than subsonic aircraft when operating in the vicinity of an airport, particularly during takeoff. The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) has recently amended its noise regulations to include the existing fleet of 16 Concorde SSTs under many of its provisions and to control the noise of any future new aircraft of that type to the levels of the original rule for subsonic aircraft [192-194].

It is generally agreed that the design goal for second generation SSTs be to make them compatible with contemporary future subsonic aircraft, but the means for stating this goal quantitatively and in regulatory framework are elusive and without consensus. Under the Noise Control Act of 1972, EPA has the responsibility to recommend regulatory actions to the FAA for its consideration [187], and the FAA also has the responsibility to develop regulations that will minimize aircraft noise for the benefit of public health and welfare. However, both organizations are constrained by the Act's admonition that any noise regulations be subject to considerations of "safety, economic reasonableness, technological practicability, and appropriateness to type of aircraft." Some of these constraints are particularly difficult to consider with respect to future SSTs.

First, many people question the economic viability of the existing SSTs and those that were proposed in the past. The

imposition, through regulation, of any additional economic penalties or risks could have a disproportionate significance in the event that the SST design was in fact economically marginal; or could be a significant factor in preventing the initiation or continuation of a truly viable SST program.

Second, technological practicability is often demonstrated in full-scale flight certificable hardware. Such a full-scale demonstration is difficult with SST noise control technology, primarily because of the absence of a hardware development program, either civil or military. Consequently, much of the proven practicable technology appropriate to SST aircraft is constrained to be that already in service. Proof of newer technology will require a hardware-oriented program for its. development and test.

These constraints make it difficult to translate the noise objectives for future SSTs into regulatory language. But unless some way is found, there can be no guarantee that the next SST design will produce an aircraft that will be compatible with other aircraft at its time of entry into service.

1.1 Background

ココクイ シンフィ シン・・

In the late 1950s, the United Kingdom and France initiated design studies for a civil SST aircraft. In 1962, they formally merged their efforts and by 1965 had finalized the design of the Concorde. The first prototypes flew in 1969 and the production aircraft entered airline service in 1976. Sixteen aircraft have been produced and no more are believed to be planned for construction. The Concorde carries up to 128 passengers over a transatlantic range of up to 3450 nautical with a cruise Mach number slightly in excess of 2.0 [188]. During the 1960s, developments were undertaken in both the USSR and the USA. The USSR effort resulted in the design of the TU-144 aircraft, which has entered limited service within the USSR. This aircraft is similar to the Concorde in its general size and performance characteristics [188].

The US effort to develop a civil SST aircraft began in 1963 and was terminated in early 1971 by the Congress, for a combination of reasons including:

- potential destruction of upper atmosphere ozone layer which protects the earth from ultraviolet radiation
- uncertainty of the economic viability of the design when put in service
- concern over the precedent of Federal participation and subsidy of a commercial venture
- airport noise and sonic boom.

0101

UUUL 1111

At the time the program was cancelled, the prototype aircraft (Boeing B2707-300) was into final design design stages and some hardware had been constructed. The design was intended to carry 270 passengers over a range of 3550 nautical miles at a cruise speed of Mach 2.7.

Some of the technology development items from the US SST program were carried forward by the FAA, together with NASA and industry. In 1972, NASA developed a formal advanced Supersonic Technology (AST) program, now called Supersonic Cruise Aircraft Research (SCAR). Its overall objectives were to provide:⁽⁶⁷⁾

والأستحدث المحاجات

Note: For additional information on Concorde and SST programs see references 14,15,17,1825,31,46,50,137,165,172,203 and 207.

- expanded technology base for future civil and military supersonic aircraft
- data needed to assess environmental and economic impacts on the US of present and future foreign supersonic transport aircraft
- a sound technical basis for any future consideration that may be given by the US to the development of an environmentally acceptable and economically viable commercial SST.

This program has generated a large number of interrelated system studies by both industry and NASA in the fields of propulsion (including noise) stratospheric emissions impact, structures and materials, aerodynamic performance, and stability and control. ^[40,136,151,152,205] The propulsion and aerodynamic studies are of particular relevance to technology assessment of SST noise control technology.

The noise goals for the Concorde aircraft development were to not create a noise exceeding the level then accepted for the operation of subsonic aircraft, a resolution of the International Civil Aircraft Organization (ICAO) in 1962 [177]. It did not meet this generalized goal, and, consequently, for takeoff it is the noisiest aircraft in the civil fleet. Further, by the time it entered service in 1976, new subsonic aircraft with high bypass ratio engines were demonstrating significant noise reductions over the subsonic aircraft of 1962. Thus, the Concorde, by comparison, appears relatively even noisier than anticipated or intended.

The noise reduction demonstrated by the new subsonic jets was a result of the technology advances in the 1960s and the promulgation in 1969 by the FAA of the first noise standards for the aircraft type certification for subsonic aircraft [186]. These standards were applied to the last version of the US SST in 1970 by recommendation of the SST Noise Advisory Committee. Their imposition necessitated a major redesign of the aircraft to ensure compliance.

The 1969 standards, now called Stage 2 noise limits, were superceded in 1977 by even more stringent limits, called Stage 3 limits, for new subsonic turbojet aircraft applying for type certification after November 1975 [195]. Recently, the FAA has promulgated a regulation which includes the existing Concordes under several provisions and applies the Stage 2 noise limits to all other civil SST aircraft [194].

The US is actively working with the ICAO Committee on noise and its working group E to develop internationally acceptable standards for future design SSTs. Working group E has defined a "common case" SST design objective for which the member nations will conduct noise and economic tradeoff studies for both current and future assumed technology. This information is of major relevance to this report [72-122].

It is recognized that if design of a new SST aircraft were initiated now, it would not enter service until 1990. At such time, an SST meeting Stage 2 noise limits would be noisier than the aircraft now in production, and much noisier than the aircraft meeting Stage 3 limits expected to be in production in the early 1980s. Therefore, the current regulation does not ensure that the noise characteristics of future design SSTs will be compatible with contemporary aircraft at the date of entry into service.

1-3

.

1.2 Frame of Reference for Technology Definition

These are two sets of definitions for the time frame availability which are used in this report, one used by the EPA and the other developed by ICAO CAN working group E for its studies.

The EPA definitions give three categories of technology; current, available, and future. Their definitions are:

- Current technology includes "shelf item" hardware and commonly known (state of the art) techniques and procedures which have been used effectively by most manufacturers for many applications.
- Available technology includes "shelf items" hardware and commonly known (state of the art) techniques and procedures which have been used effectively by some manufacturers for some applications. Also included are the results of RD&D which have not been put into practice but are available for implementation. Some performance testing may still be necessary but this technology has been certified for airworthiness or, by adequate ground and/or flight testing, determined to be capable of being certified.
- Future technology represents the outcome of RD&D programs now in progress which have not been verified but the results to date indicate high potential to a reasonable degree of confidence. Included are

present RD&D programs which are being conducted with sufficient resources of manpower, funding, and time to carry to programs to conclusion. Definitive results are expected in the relatively near future for acoustical and operational performance, economics, and flight safety. The nature of the expectations is positive because predictions of nonviable results would have been cause for earlier termination of the RD&D programs.

The ICAO-CAN-WG-E definitions give three classes of technology which are specified by the time frame that the technology would be expected to be available for use in initial design [78]. The classes are defined as:

- The Class I technology is the technology which is considered as established such that a manufacturer might rely on it to start design and development of a supersonic aircraft between 1977 and 1980. For some items, qualification is needed and will be given in the text.
- The Class II technology is the technology which is likely to be established (if the ongoing works confirm today's expectations) such that a manufacturer might rely on it to start design and development of a supersonic aircraft between 1980 and 1985.
- The Class III technology is that which will probably not be established before 1985 to the extent that a manufacturer could rely on it for design and development start of a supersonic aircraft.

A preliminary assessment by the working group gave the following interpretation to power plant and aerodynamic technology items relevant to this report (see Table 1-1).

A comparison of the EPA and ICAO definitions indicates approximately that "current" technology would be contained in Class I; available technology in Class I or II, depending on the time status of the item; and future technology in Class II or III, again depending on time status. It should be recognized that the assessment of any item of technology depends to some extent on the subjective viewpoint of those making the assessment. For example, a manufacturer is likely to be much more conservative in his assessment of availability and performance of an item if his assessment is to be used in developing a regulation or performance guarantee. Conversely, a design analyst conducting a system tradeoff to optimize the potential of a new design is less likely to be conservative, because excess safety margins inconsistently scattered among design elements tend to result in optimization trends which may be misleading; consequently, the "best estimate" is often used uniformly throughout the study process.

1.3 Organization and Time Frame of the Report

There are five sections in the body of this report. Section 2 develops a basic perspective on the noise of subsonic and supersonic aircraft and the general relationships between their airframe and engine performance characteristics, noise certification standards, and noise impact. Section 3 summarizes the status of individual elements of noise control technology including engine, aerodynamics, and operational

procedures. Section 4 reviews some of the integrated airframeengine noise integration studies, and Sec. 5 attempts to summarize where noise and the SST stand with respect to technology.

This report is based on information developed and made available prior to Fall 1978. Because the research effort for improved supersonic cruise aircraft is continuing, additional new findings may be anticipated, many of which may be expected to provide improved potential performance relative to that of "available" or Class 1 or 2 technology.

		······································	·····
	Class 1 (1977-1980)	Class II (1980-1985)	Class III (Beyond 1985)
A. Powerplant		1	
1. Engine cycle and other items			
- Turbojet/fan	Low bypass ratio		Duct burning, variable cycle engine
- Turbine entry temperature (in cruise)	1450/1500°K	1500/1600°K	> 1600°K
- Improved compressor/turbine serodynamic efficiency		Continuous Impro	Ventencs
- Variable geometry	Available for norris or stator com- poments	Extension of the con- cept	Advanced as needed for VCE
- Nozzle efficiency		Continuous Impro	venunts
2. Engine noise reduction			
- Compressor design criteria		Continuous Impro	VCments
- Acoustical treacments (low temperature)		Continuous Impro	VERERES
- Turbine design critaria	Some improve- ment	Furth	er Improvements
- Combustion noise reduction	N/A	N/A	Available
- Acoustical treatments (bigh temperature)	Limited	Ii	acressed Use
- Jet noise:			
a. Opening primary nozzle	Available	Available	Available
b. Flows mixing	Marginal		Increased
c. Retractable silencers	N/A	Available	Available
d. Coannular flows	N/A	N/A	Availabla
- Engine inscallation	н/л	N/A	Available
- Air intake acoustical treatments		Continuous Improv	ementa
B. Alteraft Aerodynamic Performances			
- Higher L/D (in cruise and at T.O.		i Continuous Improv	chenta
- Movable L/E sists		Continuous Improv	mants
- Low drag pods		Continuous Improv	chents
- CCV concepts		Continuous Improv	enents
- Improved design methods		Continuous Improv	menta
- Variable sweep wings	N/A	N/A	N/A
- Moustaches (Canatds)) Continuous Improv	4R4058
- T/E flaps		Continuous Improv	ments
- Eddy generated lift) هد همچه افسایی راهد هم را افادهم ا	Continuous Improv	enents
المحاوي المعاري المعادي المعادي المحاوي المجاور والمحاد والتحاد المحاد المحاد المحاد المحاد المحاد الم		1	

TABLE 1.1. PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF SELECTED ITEMS OF TECHNOLOGY FOR SST BY CLASS (FROM ICAO CAN WGE [78]).

1-13

a and an and a second second

DPOT DORIS 1111

;;

.

t.

2. PERSPECTIVE: SUPERSONIC VS. SUBSONIC AIRCRAFT PERFORMANCE AND AIRPORT NOISE

The performance and noise characteristics of aircraft designed for supersonic cruise differ in many aspects from the characteristics of aircraft designed for subsonic cruise. This section summarizes some of the most significant differences.

2.1 Performance

The aerodynamic and propulsion characteristics of supersonic aircraft are primarily dictated by the requirements for supersonic cruise. An SST aircraft, such as the Concorde illustrated in Fig. 2-1, has a slender fuselage and a highly swept wing of quasi triangular or delta planform. In comparison to the subsonic B-747, illustrated in Fig. 2-1, the Concorde has a much lower aspect ratio (wingspan $\div \sqrt{\text{wing area}}$). It does not have leading edge flaps for increased low speed lift as does the B-747. Its engines are afterburning turbojets which have very high speed jet exit velocity whereas the B-747 has high bypass ratio turbofan engines with a relatively low jet exit velocity. These differences, resulting from both mission and design date of technology, directly affect the noise characteristics of these aircraft.

The lift-drag ratio (L/D) (lift force \div drag force) of selected subsonic and supersonic cruise aircraft is illustrated in Fig. 2-2a. In the subsonic regime the subsonic aircraft have significantly better values than does the Concorde. Through the transonic region (Mach 0.9 - 1.1) the L/D of Concorde drops by about one-third because of the wave drag associated with transonic and supersonic flight. The result of the variation of L/D with Mach number is that the cruise L/D of Concorde is less than one-half the value obtained by an advanced subsonic design such as the B-747 and









2-3

(__)

L-1011. Thus, at cruise the Concorde requires over twice the propulsive net thrust per unit aircraft weight than that required by an advanced subsonic aircraft.

The thermal efficiency of the Concorde engine is higher than that of an advanced subsonic turbofan engine, 41% vs. 33%. This increase of power plant efficiency mitigates somewhat the poorer L/D of the Concorde in determining the amount of fuel required to achieve a stated mission range. Figure 2-2b illustrates the range parameter, which is the thermal efficiency times the L/D ratio, for some of the aircraft in Fig. 2-2a. Although the Concorde's range parameter performance is considerably below that of advanced subsonic aircraft, the potential performance of "future" supersonic cruise aircraft is estimated to be much closer to that of the advanced subsonic aircraft [28].

For its design range of 3150 nautical miles (n.m.), Paris to New York, the Concorde's fuel load is about 50% of its 400,000 lbs. takeoff weight. Of this 50%, 9% is reserve and 41% is consumed. The passenger and baggage payload is 25,000 lbs or 6% of takeoff weight (TOW) and the operating empty weight is 44% of TOW. An early model 747 which had a maximum TOW of 775,000 lbs could carry a full passenger and baggage payload of 80,000 lbs (10% of TOW) for 5400 n.m. The fuel carried is approximately 42% of TOW, and the operating empty weight is 48% of TOW. If the payload of this model B-747 is increased to 20% of TOW, the range is reduced to 4200 miles, and the total fuel carried to 32% of TOW.

These comparisons clearly show the overall performance penalty to the Concorde relative to the 747 that results from Concorde's lower value of L/D. Additionally, for a transatlantic mission Concorde's payload is very sensitive to any addition of weight to

2-4

コークナ シンカイ

the aircraft. For example, a 1% addition to TOW caused by an increase in either operating empty weight or fuel carried would reduce the payload from 6% to 5% of TOW, a reduction of 17% in payload.

Table 2.1 summarizes values of lift-drag and thrust-weight (F/W) ratios for takeoff and cruise for the Concorde, B-747 and L-1011 aircraft. The Concorde requires a higher F/W for takeoff and has a much lower L/D than either subsonic aircraft. Both of these factors tend to increase noise, i.e. a larger power plant and a lower angle of climb. The ratio of cruise to takeoff thrust for the Concorde is about twice that of either of the two subsonic aircraft. This difference implies that the optimum engine cycles could be expected to differ significantly between the two types of aircraft.

Examples of engine performance as a function of bypass ratio for supersonic and subsonic cruise are presented in Fig. 2-3. The specific thrust (net thrust + mass flow) for the supersonic cruise mission at a zero bypass ratio is about 63% of that for the subsonic engine, and at a bypass ratio of five is about 47%. The specific fuel consumption (SFC) (fuel weight consumption per hour + net thrust) for the subsonic engine decreases with increasing bypass ratio. This decrease of SFC is the major reason for the use of high bypass ratio engines (4 to 5) on subsonic jets. However, for supersonic cruise, the SFC has a slight minimum at a bypass ratio of 1.3 and increases for higher values of bypass ratio. Thus, for supersonic cruise, only bypass ratios in the range of zero to 1.3 warrant design consideration - the optimum determined after considering the increase in engine weight with increased by-pass ratio and the savings of fuel weight and other factors.

2-5

コンシー シンシン

TABLE 2.1

COMPARISON OF LIFT TO DRAG (L/D) AND THRUST TO WEIGHT (F/W) RATIOS FOR THREE AIRCRAFT

	Max	TAKEOFF		CRUISE			THRUST RATIO	
AIRCRAFT	Weight (1000 lbs)	Mach No.	L/D	F/W *	Mach No.	L/D	F/W	<u>Cruise</u> Takeoff
Concorde	400	0.30	4.0	0.38	2.0	7.4	0.14	0.36 (0.42 w/o A/B)
L1011	430	0.24	9.8	0.29	0.85	17.0	0.06	0.20
B747	775	0.24	9.0	0.25	0.85	18.5	0.05	0.22

*Takeoff thrust is sea level static (SLS); cruise thrust is actual required net thrust.

2-б

0007 2025 AUA



÷ 1

BLACK COPY

(__)

FIG. 2.3 COMPARISON OF SPECIFIC THRUST AND SPECIFIC FUEL CONSUMPTION FOR SUPERSONIC MIXED DUCTED FLOW ENGINES AND SUBSONIC UNMIXED DUCTED FLOW ENGINES WITH TURBINE INLET TEMPERATURE OF 1500 K. (From Ref. 29)

.

2-7

.

2.2 Noise

Carrow

Current supersonic aircraft are powered with zero bypass ratio jet engines that have afterburning capability. When an afterburner is used during takeoff the jet exit velocity is very high, generally resulting in the highest noise levels per pound of thrust developed by an aircraft jet propulsion system.

Table 2.2 gives comparative noise values at a slant distance of 1000 feet between the observer and the aircraft for three supersonic aircraft and four subsonic civil aircraft. The 747-200 and DC-10, which have high bypass ratio engines, are quieter than the older design aircraft, 707-320 B and 727-200, that have low bypass ratio engines. All of the subsonic aircraft tend to be quieter than the supersonic aircraft when compared at grossly similar weights and thrust. The most striking example is the comparison of the Concorde with the DC-10; the Concorde is 22-25 dB noisier at maximum takeoff power and 13 dB noisier at approach power.

The noise differential between Concorde and subsonic aircraft is not limited to maximum power engine noise in the immediate vicinity of the airport. Its noise differential extends far from the airport, after engine power has been cut back. Figure 2-4 illustrates th noise of several aircraft measured directly under the flight path at distances up to 85,000 feet from the beginning of takeoff roll. If the Concorde cuts back to the engine power appropriate to a 3% climb gradient close to the airport, its noise under the flight path is decreased from that of full power, but then becomes larger at greater distances from brake relaease. For example, at 30,000 feet from brake release, Concorde with a 3% climb gradient is 28 dB noisier than the DC 10-30, and at 60,000 feet it is 30 dB noisier, see table 2-3. If it does not cut back

	Max Gross	·	Takeoff Con			
Aircraft	(1000 No./Thrust 1bs) (1000 lbs)		With Afterburner	Max Dry	Approach	Ref.
Supersonic						
B-1	390	4/30.0	128	115	113	174
Concorde	400	4/38.5	127	124	111	189
SR-71	140	2/32.5	120	113	98	174
Subsonic						
707-320B	328	4/18.0	NA	115	108	16
727-200	173	3/14.5	NA	111	100	16
747-200	775	4/48	NA	108	99	16
DC10-10	430	3/39	NA	102	98	16

TABLE 2.2. COMPARISON OF TAKEOFF AND APPROACH NOISE (EPNL) FOR SELECTED AIRCRAFT AT A 1000 FOOT SLANT RANGE.

2-9

ار رو این از این کار میرد این این میکومی وقت میکومی و میکومی وقت میکومی و میکومی و میکومی و میکومی و میکومی و میک





2-10

يتثقفو

			Distance Érom			
		3	10,000 Ft	6	0,000 Ft	Augo Witthia
Aircraft	Weight (1000 Ibs)	EPNL (dB)	∆EPNL Re Concorde (a) 3% (dB)	EPNL (dB)	ΔEPNL Re Concorde (a) 3% (dB)	Area Within 100 EPNL Contour (Sq.N.MI.)
Concorde (@3% climb)	400	119	0	113	0	Not Available
Concorde (ⓐ Full Power)	400	115	- 4	105	- 8	54.3
B707-320B	334	108	-11	99	_14	7.5
B747-200B	775	99	-20	93	-20	2.9
DC10-30	520	91	-28	83	-30	1.0

....

TABLE 2.3TAKEOFF NOISE (EPNL) DIRECTLY UNDER THE FLIGHT PATH AT 30,000 AND
60,000 FEET FROM BRAKE RELEASE AND AREA ENCLOSED BY THE 100 EPNL
CONTOUR FOR AIRCRAFT IN FIG. 2.3. (From Ref. 189)

2-11

بدرينة ومصحده

power and climbs more rapidly, it is 24 dB greater than the DC 10-30 at 30,000 feet and 22 dB greater at 60,000 feet. At its best, full power takeoff and maximum takeoff gross weight, Concorde's area within the 100 EPNL contour is estimated to be over 7 times that of a B-707-320B and over 50 times that of a DC-10-30. Concorde's relative noise performance during takeoff shows the combined effects of its high velocity jet noise, and its low lift-drag ratio in the takeoff speed range.

In 1969 the FAA began to certify aircraft for noise under FAR Part 36 [186]. This regulation has been amended several times to increase its coverage, make technical improvements and reduce the maximum allowable noise levels. Three measurements are specified: approach, sideline, and takeoff. The measurement configuration is illustrated in Fig. 2-5 with both the original 1969 distances and the most recent amended metric distances. The regulation specifies maximum allowable noise levels for each location as a function of maximum gross takeoff weight, and for some locations as a function of number of engines. The rule allows for trading of a maximum of 3 dB among the three locations with no more than 2 dB at a single location. Thus an aircraft that was 2 dB over at one location, 1 dB over at a second location, and 3 or more dB under at the third location would comply.

Examples of the maximum allowable noise levels are given in Table 2-4 for 4-engine aircraft at 3 selected maximum gross takeoff weight. The Stage 2 Limits are the limits originally promulgated in 1969. The Stage 3 Limits were promulgated in 1977-8

The Stage 2 Limits apply to the *operation* of supersonic cruise aircraft, except for the 16 Concorde aircraft that have flight time prior to 1980. However, there is no certification rule per se for new design supersonic cruise aircraft. The Stage 2 Limits apply

2 - 12

העוע אמכר בטבע

1

ASSUMED POSITION OF BRAKE RELEASE FOR TAKEOFF AND THRESHOLD FOR LANDING 1.0 NAUTICAL MILE (2000 meters), 3.5 NAUTICAL MILES (6500 meters) LANDING MEASUREMENT POINT 0.35 NAUTICAL MILE" SIDELINE MEASUREMENT TAKEOFF MEASUREMENT POINT

*For 4-Engine Aircraft (0.25 NM for 2- and 3-engine aircraft and for 4engine aircraft in stage 3) (450 meters)

FIGURE 2-5 FAR 36 NOISE CERTIFICATION MEASURING POINTS. (From Refs. 195 and 201)

(Note: Original nautical mile distances have been amended to new metric distances except for Stage 1 and 2 4-engine aircraft.)

٠

TABLE 2.4

COMPARISON OF FAR PART 36, STAGE 2 AND 3 NOISE STANDARDS FOR AIRCRAFT TYPE CERTIFICATION OF 4-ENGINE AIRCRAFT AT SELECTED GROSS WEIGHTS (EPNL in dB) [186, 195]

MEASUREMENT/ FLIGHT			MAXIM	JM GROSS TAKEO	AKEOFF WEIGHT	
		DISTANCE	+00,000 103		800,000 103	
Sideline	2	0.35 NMiles	106.8	108.0	108.0	
Δ(2-3)	3	450 Meters	<u>98.6</u> * 8.2	<u>100.1</u> * 7.9	$\frac{100.1}{7.9}$ *	
Takeoff	<u>2</u> **	6500 Meters	105.1	108.0	108.0	
∆(2-3)	3	6500 Meters	<u>101.6</u> 3.5	<u>104.0</u> 4.0	<u>105.6</u> 2.4	
Approach	<u>2</u> **	2000 Meters	106.8	108.0	108.0	
∆(2-3)	3	2000 Meters	<u>103.5</u> 3.3	<u>104.9</u> 3.1	<u>105.0</u> 3.0	

*Corrected to 0.35 nautical miles by subtracting 1.5 dB.

コーフィ シンスに

**ORIGINAL FAR PART 36 1969 had the distances for takeoff and approach at 3.5 and 1.0 nautical miles, respectively.

to all civil airline type aircraft currently produced for use in the United States, and in the 1980s will apply to those in airline use requiring, for example, retrofit to Stage 2 limits or disposal of old aircraft not certified under FAR part 36.

The Stage 3 limits apply to subsonic aircraft for which an application for an air worthiness certificate was made after November 1975.

The numbers in Table 2.4 show that for 4-engine aircraft the most significant reduction between Stage 2 and 3 limits is about 8 dB, at the sideline location. This comparison is made at the original 0.35 n.m. distance by adjusting the Stage 3 limits by 1.5 dB to approximate the expected difference. The reductions at the other two locations are of the order of 3 dB, varying with aircraft weight.

The noise levels at the certification locations for Concorde and three subsonic aircraft are given in Table 2.5 together with the Stage 2 and 3 levels appropriate to a 400,000 and 800,000 lb aircraft. To meet Stage 2 requirements, the Concorde's noise would have to be reduced by 5-14 dB, depending on location, and to meet Stage 3, the reductions would have to be 13-18 dB. Such an aircraft would be 4-5 dB noisier than an L-1011 on takeoff, but be the same on approach. Further, it would average about the same noise levels as does the 727-200.

An 800,000 lb supersonic cruise aircraft that met the Stage 2 noise limits would be about 10 dB noisier than a B-747 on sideline and 1-2 dB noisier at the other 2 locations. If it were to meet the Stage 3 limits, it would average to slightly less noise than the B-747.

TABLE 2.5

COMPARATIVE VALUES OF NOISE AT FAR PART 36 4-ENGINE AIRCRAFT NOISE MEASUREMENT POINTS FOR SELECTED AIRCRAFT IN THE POST 1985 FLEET (From Refs. 186, 195, 196 and 197)

AIRCRAFT	max Gross Weight 1000 lbs	Takeoff	Sideline*	Approach
Concorde	400	119.5	112.0	116.5
Stage 2 SST**	400	105.1	106.8	106.8
Stage 3 SST**	400	101.6	98.6	103.5
L1011-1	430	97.0	93.5	103.4
727-200	208	102.4	102.7	100.4
747 200B	770	107.4	97.8	106.2
Stage 2 SST**	800	108.0	108.0	108.0
Stage 3 SST**	800	105.6	101.1	105.0

• • -

DECT PODV AVAII

212

*Sideline Data for 3-engine aircraft and for Stage 3, 4-engined aircraft corrected to a constant reference distance of 0.35 nautical miles by subtracting 1.5 dB.

**Hypothetical aircraft with assumed noise requirements for comparison with other aircraft.

Therefore, if a design goal of an 800,000 lb transatlantic supersonic cruise aircraft were to be "compatibility with the existing fleet," the B-747 would probably be an appropriate reference aircraft, leading to a certification goal intermediate between Stage 2 and Stage 3 subsonic limits. However, if the design goal were to be "compatibility with other new aircraft entering service in the same time frame", say 1990, then the certification goal for takeoff would be *at least* 5 dB lower than Stage 3 since the L-1011 which represents the best current technology has already achieved this result.

The problems of achieving Stage 2 certification levels for a 700,000-800,000 lb supersonic cruise aircraft are significant, but are shown later to appear technically feasible. The solution depends upon improved engine cycles, improved low-speed aerodynamic characteristics, improved throttle-flap managemnt control devices, together with application of noise control technology to enginenacelle design. However, the difficulty in meeting Stage 3 limits (or 5 dB better) is much greater and the probability of success cannot be stated with any degree of certainty.

3. TECHNOLOGY APPLICABLE TO NOISE CONTROL

The design of a supersonic cruise aircraft to accomplish a given mission - range, speed and payload - at an acceptable cost involves the optimization of a large number of variable factors. Many of these factors either directly or indirectly affect the noise characteristics of the aircraft when it approaches or departs from an airport.

For example, improvements in mission L/D enable reductions in engine thrust requirements and aircraft size and weight, thus increasing the payload fraction of the total aircraft weight. This reduction in engine size may lead directly to noise reduction, and/or the increase in payload fraction may enable additions of weight for noise suppression without accruing as severe a penalty as with a lesser L/D. Improvements in low speed L/D for approach enable a reduction in thrust during approach and a direct lowering of noise. For departure, the improvement in low speed L/D leads to the ability to climb at a higher gradient at given thrust, decreasing the noise through a greater distance; or to lower cutback thrust, and hence noise, while maintaining the same climb gradient.

Development of complex variable engine cycles that approach optimum performance for takeoff, subsonic climb and cruise, transonic acceleration and supersonic cruise tend to reduce fuel requirements and engine drag, again leading to a smaller and lighter aircraft for the given mission. This optimization in cycle also gives possibilities for reducing aircraft noise in the vicinity of the airport, because to optimize the subsonic engine performance it is necessary to maximize the bypass ratio, which then enables direct noise reduction.

Thus, the technology applicable to noise control includes not only direct noise control technology, e.g., jet suppressor, duct lining and configuration, blade spacing, engine/airframe configuration, etc., but also includes many of the fundamental technologies applicable to the overall design, e.g., aerodynamic, structural and propulsion. This section summarizes the following technologies as applicable to noise:

- aerodynamic performance
- structural design and materials
- propulsion system and noise performance
- propulsion system noise control
- control of propulsion/flight parameters
- aerodynamic (airframe) noise.

3.1 Aerodynamic Performance

The L/D for supersonic cruise for an aircraft designed today would probably be in the vicinity of 9-10, approximately 30% better than achieved in the Concrode. [28,40] Part of this improvement results from improvement in wing planform, as shown by some examples in Fig. 3.1. Part comes from more sophisticated detailing, such as optimized camber and twist [40] and wing body aerodynamic blending [22,118,169] illustrated in Fig. 3.2. These, and other improvements resulting from aerodynamic research are often made practicable by concurrent developments in materials and structural design concepts.

The subsonic L/D for optimum supersonic cruise aircraft will generally be less than that of optimum subsonic aircraft because of both the high sweep angle and the typically low aspect ratio of the supersonic aircraft. (See, for example, Fig. 3.3.) Some


ロコウイ つつつい



Ì

improvement is possible by extending the wingspan to a maximum value consistent with the basic wing planform as illustrated in Fig. 3.4. However, such extensions may lead to complex structural and flutter problems.

One of the most promising ways of improving the low-speed subsonic performance near the aircraft is the development of

variable contour leading edge flaps. A design such as that shown in Fig. 3.5 achieves an increase in wing camber, hence lift, at a constant angle of incidence. It also enables an increase in leading edge radius. from the fairly sharp entry optimum for supersonic flight at low angles of incidence to a more blunt edge which is less susceptible to separation at the higher angles of incidence required for low speed flight.

The degree of improvements for two designs are illustrated in Fig. 3.6. The results indicate a potential low speed L/D of about 10 with optimized leading edge flaps. This is a significant improvement over Concorde which has an L/D of 4 during takeoff. [28] The potential for noise reduction relative to Concorde is very significant, since the change from about 7 to 10 for the delta wing example of Fig. 3.6 represents a potential reduction of 10 dB under the takeoff flight path. [118]

There are other possible improvements for the takeoff and low speed flight regimes currently under study. These include:

- extendable wing tips with active controls to improve aspect ratio; [123]
- variable geometry landing gear and center of gravity management with active controls to improve lift coefficient at takeoff; [118]
- control surface refinements;

أأربرك المربر وكالهم متحصا فالمعتج المعاصر المرابع بمرابع

- boundary layer control over flaps;
- upper surface blowing for increased lift [33,118], and possible installation of engine above the wing [170].

It is clear that the results demonstrated above offer significant improvement in noise for a future design supersonic cruise aircraft relative to Concorde and the former U.S. SST, the B-2707.

Footnote: For additional information see references 3,7,9,11,13,21,33,41,. 47,64,143,144,145,146,151,163 and 171.



ה ורע וועד אמרט אמרט א

3.2 Structural Designs and Materials

The technology for designing aircraft structure has advanced significantly with the development of finite element modeling techniques that utilize large high-speed computers. The analysis process, including static and dynamic loads with consideration of static strength, fatigue and flutter can now be accomplished in a week, 5-10% of the time formerly required. [40]

An example of a finite element model for an arrow wing supersonic cruise aircraft is given in Fig. 3.7. The aircraft is a Boeing derivative of the NACA SCAT 15F series that was designed for a maximum takeoff gross weight of 750,000 lbs., a payload of 49,000 lbs. (230 passengers) and a cruise mach of 2.7.

Table 3.1 compares two independent weight estimates for this aircraft; one by Boeing [19,20] which assumes 1975 materials technology, the other by Lockheed [168] which assumes 1980 technology. The 1980 technology structural weight is estimated to be about 9% less than that representing 1975 technology. In the example, the resulting weight gain was translated into increased fuel weight and a 200 mile, or 5%, increase in range.

Some of the weight savings of 1975 technology relative to earlier designs result from the use of these finite element programs which enable optimization of weight and strength throughout the structure. Additional savings are possible through improved methods of defining aerodynamic loads, both steady-state pressure distribution and nonsteady pressure fluctuations due to turbulence [35]. Further, potential exists by reducing landing and runway loads, using hydraulic actuators to provide active control for the landing gear. [40]



6. C.C.

FIGURE 3.7 FINITE ELEMENT MODEL OF AN ARROW-WING SUPERSONIC CRUISE AIRCRAFT-BOEING CO. (From Ref. 34)

. . . .

ARROW-WING GROUP MASS STATEMENT IN 15m.						
	Boeing (1975 T	echnology)	Lockheed (1980 Technology)			
ال مار الماري الم	Weight (1bs)	% GTOW	Weight (1bs)	% GTOW		
Structure	224,400	29.9	201,300	26.8		
Wing	95,800		90,600	ł .		
Horizontal tail	6,500	(7,900	[
Vertical tail	5,800		5,400			
Fuselage	56,100		42,000			
Main gear	37,300		27,400	Í ,		
Nose gear	3,800		3,000			
Nacelle	19,100		24,900			
Propulsion	56,800	7.6	58,100	7.8		
Systems	77,100	10.3 [.]	54,400	7.2		
OEW	358,300	47.8	313,800	41.8		
Payload (held constant)	49,000	6.5	49,000	6.5		
Fuel	342,700 ¹	45.7	387,200²	51.7 .		
GTOW (held constant)	750,000	100	750.000	100		

TABLE 3.1 WEIGHT ESTIMATES FOR 750,000 LB., 230 PASSENGER, MACH 2.7 NASA ARROW-WING SUPERSONIC CRUISE AIRCRAFT. (From Ref. 34)

¹Range of 4000 n.mi.

3724 2233

²Range of 4200 n.mi.

ار د. این از مراجع می از مراجع از مراجع از میکند در میکند دیده میکند میکنودود و در موجه میکنده و میکند میکورش میکورش این از مراجع میکند از مراجع میکند در میکند در میکند میکند میکنودود و در موجه میکند.

The principal factor for the improvement in the weight of 1980 technology relative to that of 1975 technology in Table 3.1 results from the increased use of composite materials. [34,35,60] Figure 3.8 illustrates some of the advanced structural concepts for the 1980 technology study, and figure 3.9 illustrates weight savings which can be achieved with composites. Some of these composites were developed in the B-1 program [169], as illustrated in figure 3.10. Another promising development of the B-1 program [169] is a diffusion process for bonding titanium to fabricate structural assemblies which have weight, strength, fatigue and cost advantages for many parts such as those illustrated in figure 3.11.

The combination of improved design analysis computational methods for both loads and structure, active control devices to reduce loads, and increased utilization of advanced composite structures could result in an 8-10% reduction in operating empty weight. [40] These potential weight reductions can be translated into increases in range and/or payload; or for the same range and payload provide weight margins for the addition of noise control devices and/or margins for the reduction of engine thrust and size requrements.



TOTOOTY AVAILABLE

. . .





3727

•

3.3 Propulsion System Performance and Noise

The optimization of an engine for a supersonic cruise aircraft involves the complex balancing of many factors, some of which are in conflict. These factors include engine weight and size, subsonic and supersonic specific fuel consumption, and takeoff and landing noise. The design thrust depends on reequirements for takeoff field length, noise, climb and transonic acceleration, and supersonic cruise. Considerable progress has been made in the SCAR program, [204,205,211], primarily through studies by Pratt and Whitney [68,69,167] and General Electric [4,5,179] towards developing new advanced engine concepts that begin to optimize the various requirements. These new concepts are generally based on 1980-1990 technology for design certification in the early 1990's. Existing engines based on 1965-1975 technology are more limited.

The Rolls Royce Olympus engine [28-30] which powers the Concorde is a very advanced design straight turbojet with afterburner. Its thrust is sized for supersonic cruise without afterburner, and the afterburner is used to provide the additional thrust required for transonic acceleration and takeoff. The U.S. SST prototype B-2707 aircraft was at one time designed to use the GE-4-J5 series afterburning turbojet engine. It too utilized afterburner for both takeoff and transonic acceleration, and, in addition, required partial afterburner during supersonic cruise. In the last year of the protytype program, the engine was resized so that the B-2707 could achieve FAR 36 Stage 2 noise limits with 8-12 dB noise suppression. To decrease the jet velocity (noise) the engine airflow was increased from 633 to 890 lbs/second, and the afterburner was eliminated. [129,151] (See Table 3.2 for other comparisons among these engines.)

Footnote: For additional information on engines see references 2,10,23,52, 150,182,183,208 and 210.

TABLE 3.2

ļ

(

I

COMPARISON OF SELECTED CONVENTIONAL TURBOJET ENGINES FOR SUPERSONIC CRUISE AIRCRAFT

FACTOR	Rolls Royce Olympus	General Electric GE4J5	•General Electric GE4J6H
Status	In Service	Prototype Tested	Scaled "paper" engine
Application	Concorde	Boeing B2707	Boeing B2707-300
Cycle	Afterburning Turbojet	Afterburning Turbojet	Turbojet
Mass flow SLS(lbs/sec)	425	633	890
Thrust SLS (1bs)	38,200	70,000	73,900
Weight (1bs)	6,750	13,243	17,670 approx.
SFC Subsonic Cruise	0.93	1.08	NA
(1bs/hr/1b F)	@ M.85	@ м.9	
SFC Supersonic Cruise	1.19	1.44	NA
(lbs/hr/lb F)	@ M2.0	@ M.262	
Turbine Inlet Temp (^o F)	2236	2300	2520
References	28	129,147	5,129

3-16

and an and the second second

The weight increase, occuring with the change from the J-5 to the J6H, was approximately 18,000 lbs for the four engines. This translated into weight increase for the B2707 aircraft of many times 18,000 lbs, so that its range and payload could be maintained, albeit at greater cost. Later it was stated that the availability of a variable cycle engine would have enabled a weight reduction equivalent to the entire payload. [178] Such an engine would combine the following idealized characteristics:

- For Takeoff: high mass flow for low jet velocity and hence low noise, providing the thrust required for the field length objective,
- For subsonic cruise: higher mass flow to attain lower SFC's associated with turbofan engines,
- For supersonic cruise: operation as a straight turbojet low bypass turbofan designed to minimize spillage, bypass and boat tail drag.

These characteristics would lead to minimum jet noise while operating near an airport and near minimum fuel consuption when optimized for a mission containing both subsonic and supersonic requirements.

In the early 1970's jet model tests indicated that noise reduction was possible with a co-annular exhaust nozzle in which the outer flow had a greater velocity than the inner flow. A full-scale test was made in the Ames Wind Tunnel using a modified JT8D engine with an air inverter which ducted the fan bypass flow towards the center and the hot flow towards the periphery of the engine. These tests demonstrated the ability to increase the mass flow up to 70%, varying the bypass ratio from 1.1 to 3.5, and reducing the noise by 4 dB [118, 126], as shown in figures 3.12 and 3.13.



Several programs (see, for example, Refs. 61,71,128,131 and 155) developed an experimental basis for predicting the magnitude of the co-annular effect. The potential range of the noise reduction relative to a conical nozzle is on the order of 3-7 PNdB for a range of possible configurations, as illustrated in figure 3.14. Higher reductions are often quoted, but their reference condition is the old SAE prediction method of synthesis [173 (1965)] in which the noise of the inner and outer flows were computed separately on the basis of equivalent area conical nozzles and then summed. This method tended to over-predict the noise of all coannular flows, as well as over-predicting the noise of a single conical nozzle having the same thrust and mass flow as does the co-annular nozzle. Consequently, noise reductions based on "synthesis" yield higher values than those based on an equivalent single conical nozzle as may be seen in comparing figures 3.14 and 3.15.

The fundamental mechanism of the co-annular nozzle noise reduction is the rapid mixing accomplished by the higher speed outer flow, much as in the case of the daisy multilobe noise suppressors [43]. Because of this mixing, the axial velocity decays rapidly with axial distance, and the low and medium frequency noise generated in the major portion of the jet flow (axial distances greater than 2 diameters) is much less. Model data comparing the axial velocity as a function of axial distance for several configurations is shown in figure 3.16. Because the flow is inverted, e.g., the high speed primary is in the outer annulus, the equivalent downstream jet is probably slower than it would be if the flow were not inverted and the noise generation correspondingly lower than in a conventional bypass engine with the same area and velocity rations [43].









FIG. 3.16 VARIATION OF PEAK AXIAL VELOCITY FOR SUPPRESSED AND UNSUPPRESSED COANNULAR PLUG NOZZLES. TOTAL PRESSURE RATIO: INNER STREAM, 1.5; OUTER STREAM, 2.86. TOTAL TEMPERATURE: INNER STREAM, 812 K; OUTER STREAM, 784 K. REFERENCE VELOCITY, 304.8 m/sec (1000 ft/sec); REFERENCE DIAMETER, 15.23 cm (6 in.). (From Ref. 61.)

The "coannular noise reduction effect" was subsequently utilized in the design of several types of variable cycle engines (VCE) which were intended to explore the possibility of meeting the objectives stated above, using advanced technology variable geometry components and materials with turbine inlet temperatures of 2800°F. Two concepts of VCE's which can utilize the coannular effect are illustrated in figures 3.17 and 3.18 The duct burning turbofan heats the outer fan flow with a duct burner to provide additional thrust and control the relative velocity of the two streams. The double bypass variable cycle engine uses flow inverting passages to direct the slower stream to the center.

The General Electric engine [5,129] is termed a double bypass engine because the fan is separated into two blocks with an outer bypass between the blades and the normal bypass after the second block [129]. This arrangement, together with variable inlet guide vanes and overspeeding the front fan, enables the engine to have increased airflow (high flow) through the oversized ... front fan block and auxiliary inlet to meet takeoff thrust and noise requirements without oversizing the entire engine. The detailed section of this engine in figure 3.19 illustrates two variable area bypass injectors (VABI). The forward VABI has partial control of the amount of air in the primary stream relative to the bypass stream. This control is used to achieve the desired thrust-velocity-noise relationship during takeoff, optimize engine SFC during subsonic cruise, and provide maximum air during transonic accelleration and supersonic cruise. The rear VABI allows independent variations of high and low pressure rotor speeds, and together with the forward VABI, varies the MACH number in the stream to the correct value for the mass flow and



DEPT 2225 1111



FIG. 3.19 GENERAL ELECTRIC GE 21 SERIES DOUBLE BYPASS VARIABLE CYCLE ENGINE (from Ref. 5).

total pressure to obtain the required pressure balance for mixing the flows. The variable area low pressure turbine increases flexibility in variation of shaft speeds and accommodates the large varieties in power required by the forward fan block. An augmenter is provided for transonic acceleration and climb.

Parametric analysis of a wide range of double bypass VCE's were accomplished [5] using the 1973 NASA reference advance supersonic technology aircraft [134] and the mission profile illustrated in Fig. 3.20. Figure 3.21 shows the variation of range and noise which results from "high flowing." (The percentage of high flowing is defined relative to 100% RPM for the front fan with the nominal inlet area without auxiliary inlet.) The presumed coannular noise reduction effect was the only suppression assumed.

For this example, the range is maximum for an engine with approximately 700 lbs/second airflow which is well matched to the supersonic cruise requirement. As air flow is increased by increasing engine size (and weight) to 900 lbs/second, the range decreases — in the supersonic mission from about 4050 NM to 3900 nautical miles, and in the mixed mission from about 3960 to 3730 NM. If the increased airflow is obtained by high-flowing the engine, the loss in range is much lower, because the weight increase is less, the airflow during supersonic cruise is better matched to the thrust requirement, and the SFC in subsonic cruise is better.

An approximate scale of sideline noise level relative to FAR Part 36, Stage 2 requirements is also shown on Figure 3.21. It ranges between 4 dB greater than the limit at 900 lbs/second to 1 dB less than the limit at 1170 lbs/second. For a given noise limit, and, hence in this analysis a given airflow, the increase

מבכד רחטע אוואוו

Ì



FIG. 3.20 MISSION A PROFILE FOR AST 1973 REFERENCE AIRCRAFT, TOGW 762,000 LBS MACH 2.4. MISSION B PROFILE IS SIMILAR EXCEPT FOR THE INCLUSION OF A 600 N.M. SUBSONIC LEG AND A REDUCTION OF SUPERSONIC CRUISE. (From Ref. 5)



of range with percentage high-flow is significant, particularly in the mixed mission. Also, for a constant core size, the reduction of noise as a function of high-flow is significant with little range loss, e.g. 5 dB in the example shown for a change in percent high-flow from 0 to 30 and a range loss of about 3%. Table 3.3 gives some typical values of engine parameters for the mixed mission.

			TA	BLE 3.3	3			
EXAMPLE	FROM	FAN	HIGH-FLOW (From	STUDY Ref. 5)	FOR	MIXED	MISSION	8

	Z Fan High-Flow					
<u>Engine Performance</u> <u>Factors at Rotation</u>	107	207	30%			
Airflow W√0/6 (lb/sec)	990	1080	1170			
Primary W _{jet hot} (1b/sec)	806	690	637			
Primary V _{jet hot} (ft/sec)	2460 ·	2420	2430			
Secondary W _{jet cold} (1b/sec)	194	405	541			
Secondary V _{jet cold} (ft/sec)	1570	1530	1510			
Velocity ratio $v_{j \text{ cold}}/v_{j \text{ hot}}$	0.64	0.63	0.62			
Air Flow Ratio W j cold W j hot	0.24	0.59 .	0.85			
Installed Thrust (1bf)	57,250	56,860	57,500			
Noise Level Relative to FAR 36 Stage 2	+1.5 dB	0	-1.0 dB			
Range (nmi)	3700	3670	3610			

3~28

د. مربع از معرفو میدار معد مربعه از در منطقه Pratt and Whitney carried three engines into the Phase 3 SCAR engine concept study. [69] They are the Variable Stream Control Engine (VSCE-502B), the Rear Valve Cycle Engine (VCE-112C) and a non-augmented Low Bypass Turbojet (LBE-430). The first two of the above are variable cycle engines, the third is a reference engine with the same level of technology.

The VSCE 502B, [70] illustrated in Fig. 3.22 contains a variable geometry fan and compressor and both a primary and duct burner. The fan is driven by the low pressure turbine and the compressor by the high pressure burbine, both turbines driven by the primary flow. Its capability to independently vary the temperature and velocity of the bypass and primary streams is used to maximize the "coannular noise reduction effect" during take-off and nearly match optimum flow conditions for subsonic and supersonic cruise requirements (see Fig. 3.23 for nozzle velocity profiles for various conditions).

The rear valve engine [70] differs from the VSCE in that the low pressure turbine which drives the variable geometry fan is split into two sections; the rear section being driven by either the heated bypass duct flow when the rear valve is inverted, or by the mixed flow when the rear valve is in the mixing position. Thus this engine is capable of two distinct cycles, a "twin turbojet" mode and a "turbofan" mode as depicted in Fig. 3.24. For takeoff it is operated in the "twin turbojet" mode with the primary burner and peripheral exhaust stream at maximum temperature and the duct burner at intermediate temperature to control the inner exhaust stream. However, because the peripheral airflow for this rear valve engine is a smaller percentage of the total, as compared to the VSCE 502B in Fig. 3.25, the "coannular noise reduction effect" is much lower than that estimated for the VSCE 502B.



FIG. 3.22 PRATT & WHITNEY VARIABLE STREAM CONTROL ENGINE (VSCE 502) (From Ref. 71).





, 9+22g

ロゴウゴ うつうく トー・・

į



The specific fuel consumption of these three engines is compared in figures 3.26 and 3.27 for supersonic and subsonic cruise, respectfully. The low bypass turbojet is slightly better than the variable cycle engines for supersonic cruise and slightly worse for subsonic cruise; and the VSCE-502B is slightly better than the VCE 112C for both conditions. Figures 3.28-3.31 illustrate the range potential for these engines as a function of the sideline noise relative to the FAR Part 36 Stage 2 noise limits for the missions described in Figure 3.20 and for two values of thrust to weight ratio. These range results are probably not directly quantitatively comparable with those of figure 3.18 because assumptions and prediction methodology probably vary between the two studies. However, the basic trends are similar; increasing range with increasing sideline noise on takeoff.

The VSCE Study [69] also showed that approximately 4 dB additional reduction could be obtained by high-flowing an oversized fan and inlet. This reduction is the same as that found by General Electric for an engine of similar size shown in the curve labeled "example of approximate constant core size" in Figure 3.21

It is clear from these parametric studies that variable cycle engines with advanced technology appropriate to certification in the early 1990's offer improved performance relative to current technology turbojets, as well as the advanced technology LBE, in terms of both aircraft range and takeoff noise [65]. The range improvement comes from a more efficient matching of airflow and fuel flow to the various thrust requirements for the engine. This improvement in range is more significant in the mixed mission B than in the all-supersonic mission A because the variable-cycle engine's improved subsonic SFC gives a greater range potential. The improved noise performance of the VCE is dependent upon its ability

3-32



<u>.</u> .

......



والمراجع والمتحد والمحمد



3-35

しつひろ シンフィ シー・・

 to take advantage of the "coannular effect" together with its ability to have a higher airflow (hence less noise per lb. of thrust) for no significant weight penalty.

3.4 Propulsion System Noise Control

Propulsion system noise is generated by many sources, including: jet mixing, turbulence-shock-interaction, combustion, fan (both forward and aft radiation) and turbine. The fan and turbine generate noise comprised largely of a series of discrete tones; the other sources generate noise that has primarily broad band random noise spectra. The jet mixing and shock turbulence interaction occur in the flow behind the engine and are determined by flow parameters and nozzle geometry. The other sources are inside the engine and can be controlled by a combination of design for minimum noise generation and application of sound attenuation technology.

For engines considered for supersonic cruise, noise from jet mixing and shock turbulence interaction generally dominates during takeoff, whereas a more complex combination of propulsion sources, as well as airframe noise, are important for the noise at the lower power settings associated with landing.

Prediction of the noise during aircraft operations is a very sophisticated, but inexact, art. There are a wide range of methods used in industry both in the U.S. and abroad as illustrated in Table 3.4. An example developed by an ICAO subcommittee on SST noise prediction methods [106] of the variation of results amongst these methods is given in Table 3.5. This example is for 100% power where jet and shock noise dominate. Greater variation in the total EPNL occurs at part power where the greater variability of prediction of the other sources has more effect on the total noise, see Table 3.6. The "reference - modified strawman"

				TAI	BLE 3.4					
PREDICTION	METHODS	USED	BY (1	MEMBER From Ret	STATES ference	AND 106)	INDUSTRY	FOR	SST	EVALUATION

	121	NHOCK	CUNIUSTUR	BTYATER BTYATER	718 197	THEOLIN;	Alkruarm
#484-4300PP* (884)	ARP 876 + sum modi- find Horn Sill flight supment	Bill denft. 22004 - Biailey Barper-Busina	#484 Maskud 7111-71627	1105 76763	דוע זוזא	in spyroved untiled	FINE FIL 20-73-23
BREEDE (FEERCE)	ARP B]á + nem modi- finé Boch Bill aspensai	Com method (Bik afraulatad) VBA 5302/74	SAE draft propuss) (CE-MATTI-Eavalope) PAL B3-74-173	WE 31765 taž atšgo only	The Jo763 lat alogo only	<u>ск-матта</u> 844 вр-12-4	Notice
MQ (VE)	ABP 676 (pra- publication) + 848 Rush property	BHITHE mathing	UAR draft	Anith and Mouse of th tenes	Musia Matified	GS peihed aù pyeseal, balth add bashell for bach-up	Plax
Diai Lana	LEP 576 + one Stight asymptotic	Wat insjudsý v	0-n but statter ta 818 deuft	J730 and J7 a failtar ta Gh-Litgifi	198 bassé, Mési	dzjā-JTyb sintin dais besa	
BOUGLAS	Dun method	But Included	Yet included	Biodifică de ville șe	ith and House wea	Modified Balth and Baball with Lones	
Jicristin	rindlelad ABP 036	Sill Deafs	HAR Desfs	Dog noticed	Own as the E	GR gothed	(him unpublished active
***	Abê û3û û neay Avaraçe dinek ard Disheîû filigilê Arpunanê	Nik drafi propozal	insumai Ire in Bill	J739 desså metlend and na jaftäglit	Proprisiary m Lipapesd *alaan-up*	Come, Matthews . (and:flod)	
Cå (for Consurdo Grainstins)	AGP 836 s 148 s Dishall filght aspenset	dill denft . propost)	A48 drsft proposal (GR method)	(#alire	toå frim mateuroå syna	in)	Bol considered
AB	ARP 576 0 modi- diad Back Filght aspunsat	Jik árafk graydádi	ALE droft propost and addied spectra and field shape	Chen method in	aad ad HAIM Sano	Dun peihes .	815X

NOTES: (1) *Sutherland Absorption used, whereas ARP 866A is normally used by Industry for certification purposes.

(ii) For forward speed effects on sources other than jet mixing a 4th power Doppler amplification is used generally.

BI	EVIEW	OF S	ST TRL	AL ENG	INE	,	FREEFIEL	D PREDICTIONS	Date	
	CASE.	1 <u>09</u> •/.	Power	AT. 1000	""A Altii	ude			2	
ORGANISATION	EPNI	PEAK	PNL of	SOUNCE	FAN	EAH	r	COMMEN	IS	
(or method)		JET	SHOCK	CORE	Kosts	rwds	TURBANE			
"STRAWMAN"	[113]	1117	112	95.	85	1102)}	<u> K663</u>	Ho fan tones.		
HASA ANOPP	1132	113	1123	96	110	102	-	Pul(T).	•	
UK (ĐẠC)	[14]:	111	114	95	05	(115)	961	Fan resrvarde	doubted.	
FRANCE (SHEDHA)	1123	111	1132	967	1067	91 -	(723)	Turbine low.		
ussn	11,02	111	" ·	ibt!	100	102	093	•	•	
BOEING	[1116]	1112	[110]]	965	97 4	901	11	Dhook "someneed"		
McDAC I	112	112		99	107	93	101			
LOCIVIEED	[11]	111	.114	96	109					
GE I	1144	116	191	. 951	1092		70	Ulosa apaged 10 angensed.	GV FAD	
RA	1132	1091	1131	1013	1007	_977	_001	EPHL includes ground raflect	1,2 motres	
PLW	1127	112	-	-	1101	110à	743	·		
· ·				· ·		LEGEND		•		
		·				()	= noi	included in to		
						11	= ,· 053	essed, not occure	leiy	
· · ·				<u></u>			# ino	tones included k	n estimate	
(REFERENCE)	1134	1154	114	97	1077	1027	{903}			

.

بالاحداد فنفرف للما لأحسرون برايما وإعدامهم ماليوراده ومحافظ

فالمعين والمعيمين بالطرمان وسنداخر الانطار والمرمون المتصافان والومانيان والمترجب الألفان سالاط

.

TABLE	3.5
-------	-----

EXAMPLE OF APPLICATION OF VARIOUS PREDICTION METHODS TO AN SST TYPE ENGINE AT 100% POWER. (From Ref. 106)
TABLE 3.6

SUMMARY OF APPLICATION OF VARIOUS PREDICTION METHODS TO AN SST TYPE ENGINE AT VARIOUS POWER SETTINGS. (From Ref. 106)

		Freefield	Freefield source Predictions Peak ML						
		Elul.	Jaț	<i>t</i> ihook	Combustor	Fan (forward)	Fan (Aft)	Turbine	
100% Power at	Industry/Agency Average "ПТНАМРНАН" - Methods of July 1977	113 ±14 113	112 1112	113 1123	97 1 95	106 <u>1</u> (85)	101 (1107)	06 (662)	
	"Referance"" - modified Dirayman as per Anner II	1135	1155	114±	97	1078	102	901	
<u>606</u> power at 1000 ft	I/A Ayernage Bitannan Bafarange	105 <u>3</u> ±5 103 104 <u>3</u> *	102 101 1 104	91 • 952 94	94 907 924	1032 042 107	102 1 (1105) 1017	05 (69) 90	
252 power at 400 ft	F I/A Averacy Birauman Beference"	108 ±5 111 1074	93 932 942	-	943 923 953	1082 94 110	109၌ 119၌ 110	99 794. 106	

TRIAL SET CURRARY

* Computed by Die (Weybridge), where Reference Procedure is programmed

5 Would increase by 2 dB approximately if all participants estimated all sources.

() Figures not included in EML

prediction procedure [106] together with the current SAE procedure [173] appear to represent the current consensus for predicting propulsion system noise for supersonic engines.

The primary noise condition of concern for SST design is takeoff, because it is generally considered that the noise control potential for noise during landing is sufficient for FAR 36 Stage 2 requirements, and the control potential probably is sufficient for Stage 3 requirements as well. The variable inlet geometry required for supersonic flight offers potential of using a near sonic throat [59] to reduce all forward radiated fan noise during landing, and the sophisticated aircraft control system enables optimization of a decelerating approach, as has been proved to be effective by the Concorde [190]. Airframe noise which provides a threshold during landing is discussed later, as is the relative noise at the sideline and takeoff noise measurement locations which are affected by how the aircraft is operated.

The amount of noise generated in the jet flow, as well as its frequency and directional characteristics is primarily a function of nozzle geometry in combination with the spatial distribution of flow (pressure, temperature and velocity) in or near the effective nozzle plane. In the development of new engine concepts, previously discussed, noise control was considered and integrated in the selection of engine cycle, bypass ratio, flow inversion, stream velocities for coannular effect, fan high flow for takeoff, etc.; all together with cruise and climb performance requirements. If additional noise reduction is required for the design, it may be obtained by altering nozzle geometry, i.e., a noise suppressor with or without an acoustically treated exhaust ejector, or by resiging the engine to attain the required thrust with higher airflow and lower combustion temperatures, thus reducing exit For additional information on noise generation, see references 1,12, 24,27,32,36,45,55,56,57,58,66,124,127,130,132,133,135,138,140,141, Footnote: 142,148,149,156,157,158,159,169,175,176,180 and 181.

3-40

velocity. These two techniques have been applied in integrated airframe-propulsion studies to the various candidate engine families developed in the SCAR program for the purpose of studying the tradeoffs between various performance parameters, such as noise and range. (See Section 4.) Additionally, up to 3 dB reduction can be attained by configuring the aircraft so that the engines are over the wing; or, as in the case of the Lockheed study [110, 212], in an over under configuration, so that the lower jet shields (or refracts) the noise of the upper jet from observers under the aircraft.

Noise suppressors for turbojet engines were developed in the 1950's. The early B-707s had the circular conical nozzle replaced with 21 smaller tubes; the early DC-8 had a multilobed daisy nozzle with retractable ejector. These suppressors effectively . spread the jetstream over a larger circular area, reducing its downstream velocity and low and middle frequency noise, but increasing slightly its high frequency noise generated by the initial mixing of the smaller jets on the periphery of the flow [43]. The thrust losses with the better early suppressors were typically of the order of 1% per PNdB.

Little improvement in technology occurred until the late 1960's when Boeing and General Electric attempted to reduce the noise of the afterburning GE4J5 engine which was developed for the B2707 SST. Considerable progress was made, both in maximization of suppression and in minimization of thrust losses through better base ventilation. This work was continued after the cancellation of the U.S. SST program with development of hardware that could be tested in flight, and led to a major FAA program with General Electric to investigate almost all aspects of high velocity jet noise suppression [119].

The performance of a suppressor is affected by the nozzle flow conditions, pressure ratio and velocity, and by the flight conditions. Figure 3.32 illustrates the effect of flight speed on the suppression characteristics of several model nozzles evaluated in the Ames 40 x 80 ft wind tunnel, and includes two B727 flight test points. In all of these test configurations the suppression decreases with an increase in forward velocity, as found for the Concorde spade suppressors [63].

÷ •

Figure 3.33 illustrates the suppression characteristics of a 32 spoke-plug and a 12 chute-plug nozzle over a range of jet velocities, both static and in low speed flight. In both cases, the suppression increases with jet velocity tending to reach a maximum at the nozzle design condition. For these examples, the peak PNL tends to decrease in flight relative to its static condition. The installed gross thrust coefficient for the 12 chute-plug nozzle was about 0.93 when measured statically, and 0.89-0.92 when in flight at nozzle pressure ratios in excess of 2.0. The installed gross thrust coefficient for the 32 spoke nozzle was approximately 0.89-0.92 statically, and 0.81-0.84 in flight at nozzle pressure ratios over 2.0 [24].

Examples of suppressor configurations studied in the FAA high velocity jet noise suppression program [119] are illustrated in figures 3.34 and 3.35. Simulated flight data for a 40 shallow chute dual stream suppressor and a 32 chute single stream suppressor are given in figure 3.36. The noise reduction in the forward quadrant is thought to result from the suppression of shock noise as illustrated in figure 3.37a. The EPNL suppression for the 32 chute single stream suppressor is estimated to be 10 EPNdB for a weight penalty of approximately 1150 lbs, and a thrust loss of 6% (see Fig. 3.37b). For the 40 shallow chute coannular plug nozzle the reduction is 8.5 EPNdB for a weight

3-42



FIG. 3.32 FLIGHT EFFECT ON SEVERAL MODEL SUPPRESSORS AS MEASURED IN THE 40 X 80 FT WIND TUNNEL. (From Ref. 102)

.



3-44







EXAMPLES OF CHUTE TYPE SUPPRESSORS FOR SINGLE AND DUAL FLOW PLUG NOZZLES.

3-46

....

ð

ANMILAR SUPPRESSOR ARTA HATIO AND PADIUS BALLO VARIATION ON TUPBORT







- * Apuct^{/A}Core⁼192

- RETRACTED CORE PLUG WITH .7 in, STFP
 AREA RATIO≈1,75
 RADIUS RATIO≈.717
- DUCT SUPPRESSOR ELEMENT NUMBER VARIATION ON DUAL FLOW

ר ומא וועאון אסטע אעאון

.

 \sim

FIG. 3.35



į

Ĩ



コペンイ シンフィ

penalty of approximately 550 lbs and a thrust loss of 8%. The factors influencing the thrust loss for a typical chute suppressor the shown in Fig. 3.38a and for the base pressure losses of a tube suppressor in Fig. 3.38b.

This FAA program has not only investigated systematically a large range of designs for suppressors, but has also developed more sophisticated analytical methods for predicting their performances. One example of predicting the detailed noise performance of a 104 tube suppressor in flight is illustrated in figure 3.39. The agreement is very close. The comparison of measured and predicted in-flight EPNL over a variety of suppressor types is illustrated in figure 3.40. The data have a correlation coefficient of 0.98, 80% confidence of prediction within ± 2.1 EPNdB, 95% confidence of prediction within ± 3.2 EPNdB.

Table 3.7, prepared for ICAO CAN Working Group E [102], summarizes the suppression characteristics of several types of suppressors applicable to the high jet velocities applicable to engines for supersonic cruise aircraft. Configurations such as the 32 chute-plug and the 57 tube treated ejector are shown to give static suppression of 12 and 15 dB, respectively, with less than 1/2% thrust loss (flight) per dB suppression (static).

For these data, the amount of flight suppression tends to be equal or less than the amount of static suppression, as illustrated in figure 3.41, with some of the multi-tube suppressors showing maximum promise of good flight performance. As might be anticipated, the number of PNdB reduction (static) per \$ thrust loss (static) is highly variable, varying from 5:1 to 0.5:1 in the data illustrated on figure 3.42 Even greater variability can be found in comparing the number of PNdB reduction in flight with the thrust loss in flight as illustrated in figure 3.43.



コーンチ シンフィ トー・・



FIG. 3.39 COMPARISON OF MEASURED AND PREDICTED NOISE CHARACTERISTICS OF 104 TUBE SUPPRESSOR IN "AEROTRAIN," FLIGHT. (From Ref. 119)



 $\overline{}$

SUPPRESSOR TYPE	MASS AVERAGED VELOCITY, fps	∆PNL (Static)	$\Delta PNL/\Delta C_F$ (Flight) 9
Turbojet/Mixed Flow Turbofan Single Flow			
8 Lobe Daisy	~2200	~ 5.7	~ .9
32 Chute/Plug	~2500 + 2550	~12.0	~ .4
48 Spoke/Plug	~2500 + 2550	~16.0	~ .8
57 Tube/Treated Ejector	~2500 → 2550	~15.8	~2.2
85 Tube/Treated Ejector	~2500 → 2550	~20.8	~1.2
104 Tube	~2200	~13.2	~1.1
Annular Plug/High Radius Ratio	~2400	~ 2.0	~3.3
Low Bypass/Dual Flow			
Coannular Nozzle with Plug	~2200	~5 - 6	~2.9

TABLE 3.7 NOISE SUPPRESSION/AERO PERFORMANCE POST SST STATUS (From Ref. 102) SHOWING TYPICAL SIDELINE Δ PNL'S RE CONICAL STATIC AND THRUST COEFFICIENT (C_{F_g}) @ $V_{a/c} \approx 240$ KNOTS

واليوارية المعرفاتين فتداسخ لسر







These data summaries illustrate that there have been many suppressors designed that have exhibited a wide range of performance characteristics with regard to both noise and thrust in both flight and static conditions. Some have very useful characteristics; others are unsatisfactory in one or more aspects. Although many of the devices tested were undoubtedly designed to. explore the range of individual parameter variations, there have been many designs which were thought to be promising for noise suppression which have failed in flight noise suppression performance. As a result, test facilities, free jet, aerotrain, flight test bed and wind tunnel, have been developed for use in testing suppressor performance. The use of these facilities, together with the advanced prediction methodologies developed in the FAA program [119] and elsewhere, should enable the design for supersonic cruise aircraft of practical suppressors in the 8-12 EPNdB reduction range at modest thrust penalties.

Footnote: For additional information on suppression see references 26,37, 38,44,125,139 and 166.

3.5 Control of Propulsion/Flight Parameters

A supersonic cruise aircraft is expected to have a very sophisticated computer flight control system which may be programmed to continuously vary both aircraft and engine controls during landing and takeoff. Consequently, it is anticipated that both engine thrust and aircraft control surfaces can be managed to achieve a variety of flight conditions which would not be conceivably under manual control within the normal cockpit workload limitations.

Figure 3.44a illustrates a Boeing concept [118] of the range of possibilities that deviate from existing FAR 36 rules. The range of tradeoffs for this example indicate as much as 9 EPNdB reduction of community noise when controls are used to minimize community noise, or a 4 EPNdB reduction in both sideline community noise when controls are used to minimize sideline noise.

If the aircraft engine is oversized for noise or other flight conditions, a programmed thrust-reduction during takeoff will enable the aircraft to use maximum thrust when ground attenuation is high, and decreased thrust after becoming airborne. Figure 3.45 illustrates the potential of this technique on a Lockheed study aircraft [121]. The results in this example are a 2.7 EPNdB reduction in sideline, 0.7 EPNdB reduction in community noise for a 1.8 dB reduction in traded noise.

The acoustic considerations used by Pratt and Whitney [69] in developing optimized programmed thrust during takeoff are illustrated in Fig. 3.46. When the aircraft is on the runway the combination of shielding and excess ground attenuation is estimated to be 13 PNdB at the sideline distance. The excess ground attenuation reduces with altitude, becoming zero PNdB at 600 ft

SYSTEM/ PROCEDURE	APPLICATION	PURPOSE	ADVANTAGES
PROGRAMMED THROTTLES	AUTOMATIC THROTTLE MODULATION DURING TAKEOFF AND CLIMB	TAKE ADVANTAGE OF GROUND SHIELDING	LOWER TAKEOFF FIELD LENGTH HIGHER COMMUNITY ALTITUDE OR HIGHER L/D AT COMMUNITY
PARTIAL FLAP RETRACTION	AUTOMATIC PARTIAL FLAP RETRACTION DURING INITIAL CLIMB	IMPROVE CLIMBOUT LIFT/DRAG RATIO	HIGHER COMMUNITY ALTITUDE HIGHER L/D AT COMMUNITY
CLIMB ACCELERATION	TRADE CLIMB CAPABILITY FOR ACCELERATION	IMPROVE L/D AT THE EXPENSE OF COMMUNITY ALTITUDE	HIGHER L/D AT COMMUNITY
AUTOMATIC PERFORMANCE RESERVES (APR)	AUTOMATIC INCREASE IN THRUST (10%) AFTER ENGINE FAILURE	MEET LEVEL FLIGHT ENGINE-OUT REQUIREMENT WITH APR	LOWER COMMUNITY CUTBACK POWER SETTINGS

.

a) Advanced Takeoff Systems and Procedures



س 120

1

...

محمر مرمد



FIG. 3.44 NOISE REDUCTION POTENTIAL OF ADVANCE TAKEOFF SYSTEMS AND PROCEDURES. (From Ref. 118)

3-59

an an Anna guaranna a guadhachtar a tha caith ann ann ar guadhachtar ghar a sugar tha caith faith anna anna a t





altitude. For higher altitudes the combined effect of shielding and increased distance is estimated to provide approximately 5 PNdB reduction.

The range of throttle schedules investigated for two examples of programed throttle is compared with constant throttle in Figure 3.47, together with the sideline noise estimates for each example. For the constant throttle case, the thrust weight ratio $(F_n/TOGW)$ required for the field length of 10,500 ft is 0.275 prior to cutback where it is reduced to 0.20. For the programed throttle cases, the entire available $F_n/TOGW$ of 0.328 is utilized for the ground roll, and is reduced consistent with sideline noise requirements as the aircraft gains altitude. Because of the higher thrust during ground roll, the aircraft can attain a higher velocity with its associated improvement in L/D such that the cutback thrust weight ratio can be 0.17, less than that possible in the constant throttle case.

Examples of climb profiles with programed throttles are compared with the constant throttle case in Fig. 3.48. In this example the engine is sized (mass flow 780 lbs/sec) to achieve with constant throttle 108 EPNdB at both sideline and community (108/108). The possible tradeoffs between community and sideline noise are illustrated in Fig. 3.48. Throttle schedule B enables achievement of a 5 EPNdB reduction at the community measurement point when holding 108 EPNdB along the sideline. Throttle schedule C keeps both community and sideline levels equal, but 3.5 dB less than the 108 associated with the constant throttle schedule A. The range loss estimated for throttle schedule C is approximately 40 nautical miles (approximately 1%), as illustrated in Fig. 3.50. 3200 M (10,500 ft) field length W_{AT_2} /TOGW = 0.00102 sec⁻¹







Thrust management can be used to increase range for constant noise as well as reducing both range and noise, as shown in a tradeoff study on the GE dual bypass engine [5]. Table 3.8 illustrates the potential for increasing range by reducing engine size (airflow) and weight, keeping sideline noise constant at 110 EPNdB through application of programed throttles. In this example the increase in jet velocity, required for constant thrust at takeoff with smaller engines, results in both lower altitude and higher jet velocities at cutback. Consequently, the noise over the community is higher during climbout after cutback resulting in larger footprint areas, yet still meeting the same certification requirements.

TABLE 3.8	NOISE	CHARACTERISTICS	FOR	ENGINE	SIZED FOR	TAKEOFF	(From Ref	. 5))
									/

	Effects of Varying Exhaust Jet Velocity and Varying Amount of Thrust Management						
Exhaust Jet Velocity, V _J - ft/sec	2442	2500	2550	2600			
Airflow for 61400 lbf 7.0 Thrust - lb/sec	1164	1077	1029	994			
Peak Sideline Noise (Constant throttle climbout) EPNL dB	110.0	110.7	111.5	112.6			
Peak Sideline Noise (Power Management) EPNL dB	110.0	110.0	110.0	110.0			
ARange (Mission A) N.mi.	(base)	+150	+200	+220			
∆Range (Mission B) N.mi.	(base)	+180	+230	+270			
Estimated Altitude at Community Point, ft.	1870	1843	1782	1716			
Estimated Community Noise (Cutback Thrust) EPNL dB	101.9	102.8	103.6	104.3			
Traded Noise EPNL dB	108.0	108.0	108.0	108.0			

3.6 Aerodynamic (Airframe) Noise

The turbulence created by the aerodynamic flow of air over an aircraft and the wakes beyond the aircraft structure radiate noise often referred to as airframe noise. The absolute magnitude of the total airframe noise radiated is approximately the same during both takeoff and landing, the noise increase due to the higher speed during takeoff approximately offset by the noise radiated from the landing gear, doors and wheel wells during landing. However, since the propulsion system noise is much greater during takeoff than during landing, airframe noise is of importance only in landing.

Some of the sources of airframe noise are illustrated in Fig. 3.51, and a comparison of measured and calculated noise for two configurations of the B747 is shown in Fig. 3.52. For this case, the extension of landing gear adds about 3 dB to the broadband noise of the aircraft with only flaps down. The comparison between FAA prediction and measurement [48] seems relatively good for this case.

The basic prediction method [48] is based on summing the noise of the clean airframe together with the noise generated by individual components, e.g., flaps, spoilers, landing gear, etc. The noise of the clean airframe follows the fifth power of velocity for a wide variety of aircraft types as shown in Fig. 3.53. In these data the clean F-106 delta wing fighter aircraft may be seen to follow the lower line of quieter configurations. However, its noise is not as well predicted by the FAA method as by the NASA ANOPP drag element method; compare Figs. 3.52 and 3.54.







3-69

and a second second



RECT CODV AVIAII ADI P

The increase in noise for the VClO aircraft, "dirty" vs. "clean", is shown in Fig. 3.55, together with the engine noise and its compressor tone at 2.5 kilohertz. The estimated contribution of leading edge slats, flaps at various angles, landing gear, landing gear doors are shown in Fig. 3.56. The combination of all of these factors adds 11 dB to the overall sound pressure level of the noise radiated by the "clean aircraft."

An 0.015 scale model of the AST 100 was tested in the Langley freejet anechoic facility [162] to determine its airframe noise. The model was tested at several speeds in both a clean and an approach flaps (without landing gear) configuration. The data shown in Fig. 3.57 show good agreement with prediction for the clean configuration. The data for the approach flaps condition are about 2-3 dB below the prediction for landing configuration, which might be expected because no landing gear were included in the model. An approximate scaling of these data to full-scale, 170 knot approach at 1 nautical mile altitude and conversion to PNL by adding 7 dB to the OASPL [48] gives an EPNL of 88 EPNdB for the "clean" configuration and 98 EPNdB for the approach flap condition.

and the second second













And the second second second second

DECT CORV ANAILARY T



FIG. 3.57 VARIATION OF OVERALL SOUND PRESSURE LEVEL (OASPL) WITH VELOCITY FOR VARIOUS CONFIGURATIONS OF A 0.015 MODEL OF AST/OO IN A FREE JET ANECHOIC FACILITY AT A DISTANCE OF 4.33 FT. (From Ref. 162)

3-73

.

These results are consistent with the estimates by Lockheed [116] for various weights and models of its CL 1611 advanced supersonic transport. The CL 1611 series data given in Table 3.9 show predicted airframe noise ranging between 96.7 and 99 EPNdB and total estimated approach noise ranging between 103.1 and 105.9. For this example all of the configurations meet the FAR-36 Stage 2 limits, and some meet the Stage 3 limits. However, assuming that the airframe noise predictions are correct, and of the order of 99 EPNdB, to achieve a reduction of the total noise to 102 EPNdB would require the total propulsion noise (fan and jet) to be no greater than 99 EPNdB, and to achieve a total noise of 100 EPNdB would require total propulsion noise to be no greater than 93 EPNdB.
DESCRIPTION	-1 MIN. Doc	-1 MIN. DOC	-3 MIN. DOC	-4 MIN. DOC	-1 MIN. NOISE	-7 MIN. DOC	-9 MIN. DOC
Landing Weight (1bs)	375,000	395,000	397,000	406,000	400,000	416,000	400,000
Thrust Required (lbs) (4 Engines)	42,268	48,660	41,325	49,797	49,148	47,798	48,852
Jet Noise (EPNdB) (No Credit for Mechanical Suppressor)	101.7	99.6	102.4	100.6	101.5	94.9	93.9
Fan Noise (EPNdB)	97.0	93.3	97.3	93.8	97.4	96.4	98.4
Airframe Noise (EPNdB)	96.7	98.6	96.2	98.7	98.8	99.0	98.6
Total Approach Noise (EPNdB)	104.8	104.2	106.9	104.8	105.9	103.5	103.1

TABLE 3.9APPROACH NOISE LEVELS OF LOCKHEED CL 1611 SERIES
(Preliminary Results) (From Ref.)

4. AIRFRAME-PROPULSION INTEGRATION AND NOISE

The NASA SCAR program has utilized a series of reference aircraft designs to provide a basis for evaluating the overall effectiveness of technological developments in improving AST performance [40]. Table 4.1 summarizes some of the characteristics of three versions of the NASA reference AST, together with the reference designs of McDonald Douglas and Lockheed, and the Concorde and the prototype Boeing 2707 which was cancelled in 1970.

The five U.S. reference designs have a design range of 3850 to 4400 nautical miles. A nominal 4000 nautical mile range satisfies the requirements for many key city pair routes, as shown on figure 4.1. It covers the major North Atlantic routes, including New York-Rome. Arguments have been forwarded for design ranges up to 6500 n. miles [46] which would include most of the routes amongst the industrialized nations. An estimate of the traffic on overseas routes in the year 2000 [51] indicates that a range of 3500 n. miles would satisfy 53% of the world overwater route; a range of 4000 n. miles would satisfy 77%, and a range of 4500 would satisfy approximately 85%, including San Francisco-Tokyo. Additionally, a range of 4000 n. miles would give one stop service amongst 95% of the world's population [46].

Figure 4.2 indicates three specific markets for an advanced SST which require ranges between approximately 3300 and 4500 n. miles, and it illustrates the kind of range — payload tradeoff which might be anticipated in a family of aircraft for two values of takeoff gross weight. The aircraft described in Table 4.1 essentially cover this range of markets.

4-1

ロロウイ つつつく

TABLE 4.1 CHARACTERISTICS OF SELECTED 4-ENGINE SUPERSONIC AIRCRAFT DESIGNS*

		л L П С R А Р Т						
C H A R A (; T E R I S T I C	U.KFrance Concorde	Boeing B2707 (1970) Prototype	NASA (Ref. AST (1973)	NASA AST- 100 (1976)	NASA 1976 AST 102 (1976)	Hebonuld Douglas AST (1975)	Lockheed AST (1975)	
Technology	Current	Current	Cert.10 1990s	Cert.in 1990m	Cort. in 1990a	Start des. late 1970s	Stort des. early 1980o	
Takeoff Gross Weight (1000 1bs) Number of Passengers Cruise Mach No. Runge (nautical siles)	400 108 2.02 3150	750 261 2.7 3650	762 292 2.2-2.7 4000	718 292 2.7 3968	718 292 2.7 4400	750 273 2.2 4400	592 290 2.55 3850	
Engine (reference)	Rolla Royce Olympua	Gen.Elec. Turbojet & A/B	Gen. Elec. Turbojet (Ref.)	Gen. Elec. Turbojet (Sef.)	Gen. Else. Turbojet (Ref.)	Gen, Elec. Turbojet (Ref.)	Pratt & Whitney VSCR (Ref.)	
S.L. Statle throat (1000 lbs) S.L. Liftoff Net Throat (1000 lbs	38.0 33.6	67.8 52.5	73.5 54.5	66.0	55.7	74.7 54.3	44.0	
Static Thrust-Neight Ratio Auro Efficiency Max Cruise 1/D	0.38 7.4	0.36 7.95	0.39 8.7	0.37 9.1	0.31 9.1	0.40 9.6	9.0	
Noise Estimates (EPRI.): Sideline Takeoff Approach	112.2 119.5 116.7	<u>Gon1s</u> 119.5*(112) 108. (108) 109 (108)	<u>Goulu</u> 111.6 (108)* 119.7 (108) 108.5 (108)	<u>Coalm</u> 109.5 (108) 109.5 (108) 108 (108)	Allot- Const ra Ined	105 108 107	Heats FAN 36	
Neferencos	26,61	51.147	8,134	В	49	53	54,213	
FOOTHOTES: AThose study designs may be found in many versions and mated with many engine designs	Intended to be no wore noisy than B-707 & DCB aircraft	Later version was calcula- ted to meet FAR-36	A Requires 11.7 dB suppression to muct FAR 36.	With 4.9 dB suppression requires 1.5 more for a total of 6.4 dB suppression	Would require suppreseion to most FAR 36	A Employo HDC auppression syntem to mont FAR 36		

المستحاصة بشعب فعدوديو كالأراجع يريردا والاعتمادية متراوليا كأنا فالمعا

والمتحد والمرادية والمتحدية والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد والمتحد والمحافظ المحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ

. . . المحمد عند من يورد عند مانور فريد وست بري ماه



ゴンシー

2022

The cruise design mach number for the aircraft in Table 4.1 varies between 2.0 and 2.7. The Concorde utilized a mach number slightly above 2.0, enabling it to be constructed primarily of aluminun. McDonald Douglas [50] selected a cruise mach number of 2.2, as appropriate for an aircraft intended for immediate initiation of detailed design, because of its reduced technical risk, lower operating costs and increased range. Lockheed [54] selected a cruise mach number of 2.55 for an aircraft intended for detailed design initiation in the early 1980s and for considerable use of composite structures. The NASA Reference AST, intended for certification in the 1990s, was utilized for a variety of tradeoff studies in the mach number range of 2.2-2.7. However, its derivative aircraft, the AST 100 and 102 were optimized for mach 2.7.

The sea level static thrust-weight ratio for these aircraft designs varies between approximately 0.3 and 0.4 with the higher values in some of the U.S. study designs resulting partially from oversizing the engines to attain takeoff thrust requirements at lower jet exit velocity and noise. The AST-102 represents an iteration of the AST100, optimized for range at fixed TOGW and payload, without a noise constraint.

The aerodynamic efficiency (L/D at cruise) is between 9 and 10 for the U.S. study designs, considerably greater than the 7-8 range of the earlier aircraft. This aerodynamic improvement is a major factor in the range increases shown.

The AST study aircraft and the B2707 have been used for the development of many derivative designs, specialized for particular study objectives. Their performances are variously quoted, depending upon the specific study in which the data are derived, its assumptions, methods, and constraints. This statement

applies particularly to the estimated noise levels, the earlier studies utilizing a variety of assumptions and methods, some of which are at variance with current practice. Therefore, the quoted noise levels should be considered as those believed at the time by the developing organizations, and not necessarily comparable amongst organizations or currently validated.

The following subsections examine some of the aspects of the NASA AST reference designs, the noise studies accomplished with both NASA and airframe manufacturers designs, and the relation-ship between potential impact and noise levels at certification measurement locations.

4.1 NASA Reference Aircraft Designs

Aircraft Characteristics

1101

The 1973 NASA Reference AST [134] was derived from earlier Boeing study aircraft which evolved from the B2707 and the NASA development of aerodynamically advanced AST concepts with arrow wing planforms. The propulsion system parameters were based on scaled data from the GE4 engine series designed for the U.S. SST program [129]; but without afterburner, and with improved component technology, including an increase of 450°F in turbine inlet temperature. Similarly, the weight estimates for the reference AST were based on design data from the U.S. SST program, and later verified by Boeing in a detailed structural analysis [19,20].

The NASA reference AST was refined and updated in early 1975 by the development of the AST-100 design [8], which is illustrated in Fig. 4.3. Some of its characteristics and design mission performance are summarized in Table 4.2. Its improvement in maximum L/D relative to the reference aircraft, see Fig. 4.4, enabled





5.0



TABLE 4.2 AIRCRAFT CHARACTERISTICS AND MISSION PERFORMANCE OF NASA AST-100 FROM REF. 8

AIRCRAFT CHARACTERISTICS

÷ '

Takeoff gross weight	lbm	718000
Operating weight empty	lbm	329476
Payload-No. Passengers		292
Cargo		0
' Total Weight	1bm	61.028
Wing area - reference	ft ²	9969
- actual	ft ²	10996
S.L. static installed thrust per		
engine (std. day + 8°C),	lbf	65978
Initial installed thrust to		
weight ratio		.37
Initial wing loading - reference	1bm/ft ²	72.0
- actual,	1bm/ft ²	65.3
Takeoff field length	ft	10,500
•		·

INITIAL CRUISE CONDITIONS

Lift Drag Ratio	8.91
Specific Fuel Consumption (lbs/hr/lb	1.355
Altitude (feet)	62000

DESIGN MISSION SUPERSONIC CRUISE MACH 2.62 (2.7 Std. Day)

	OPERATING WEIGHTS	∆ FUEL 1bm	∆ RANGE	Δ TIME min.
Takeoff	718000	9600	0	11
Start Climb	708400	63769	337	22
Start Cruise	644631	186081	3431	134
End Cruise	458550	3550	200	20
End Descent	455000	2578	0	5
Taxi-In				
Block Fuel & Time		265578		192
Reserve Fuel		64491		
Trip Range			3968	

NOTES: 1. Taxi-in fuel taken out of reserves at destination.

2. C.A.B. range corresponding to block time and fuel equals trip range minus traffic allowances as will be specified for supersonic aircraft.

مرد وجود بتواور وروري بالمرد مراجع المراجع المراجع

a reduction in engine size and fuel consumption leading to a reduction of aircraft takeoff gross weight from 762 to 718 thousand lbs., while still achieving the same payload and range performance capability.

The range capability for various combinations of takeoff gross weight and payload for aircraft with the AST-100 thrustweight and wing loading values is illustrated in Fig. 4.5. The values to the left of the maximum power cruise line are not possible because of insufficient or inefficient engine thrust. The results show that the payload-gross weight fraction is a decreasing function of range and size and that for a constant passenger payload the aircraft size increases approximately proportional to aircraft range.

The effect of technology improvements (+) (regressing (-)) on both range (for fixed takeoff gross weight) and takeoff gross weight (for fixed range) are shown in Fig. 4.6. Drag and specific fuel consumption are the most important terms, followed by structural and totalengine weight. Thus small changes in engine weight, such as a stowable suppressor, would not necessarily have great significance, as long as they did not cause penalties in either drag or specific fuel consumption.

Subsequent to the development of the AST-100 NASA applied a new design sizing and performance optimization program to a family of AST derivative aircraft with the same takeoff gross weight, passenger payload, mission and cruise mach number as that of the AST-100. The independent variables for this optimization were wing loading (W/S in lbs/sq.ft.) and sea level static installed thrust weight ratio (F/W). The object of the optimization was to maximize range, subject to a set of fixed constraints





ファフォ シンフィ

4-10

Contract Sector and

derived from other considerations; such as takeoff field length of 10,500 ft; cruise and climb thrust margins of 0.1 and 0.2, respectively, and takeoff speed not exceeding 200 knots.

The results of this study are presented in Fig. 4.7 which shows contours of constant range vs. F/W and W/S, together with superimposed constraints. The allowable region is on the side of the constraint lines that is away from the shading. The optimum aircraft, neglecting constraints, has a range of 4861 n. miles, a wing loading of 110 lbs/sq ft and a thrust weight ratio of 0.25. Such an aircraft has a relatively small wing, with minimum structure and engine empty weight, enabling a reduction of thrust requirements for part of cruise, and an increase in the amount of fuel carried for fixed gross takeoff and payload weights. This increase in fuel weight carrying potential is the primary reason for its range potential. However, such an aircraft design would probably not have the physical volume to store the allowed fuel weight. Further, its takeoff field length is estimated at over 16,000 feet, takeoff speed is about 225 knots, and climb thrust margin is about 0.06; all three factors violating the fixed constraints.

The aircraft that does meet all constraints (except fuel) is designated as the AST-102. This aircraft was found to have a range potential that is approximately 13% greater than that of the AST-100, after modifying the design of the wing so that it can carry the required fuel. However, its noise problem would be greater than that of the AST-100 because its takeoff thrust margin is less (lower F/W) and its low speed climb capability is lower (less wing area for same TOGW and approximately similar L/D). Consequently during takeoff, its engine must be operated nearer to maximum thrust; i.e. maximum jet velocity and noise.



Low-Speed Aerodynamics and Noise

The low-speed aerodynamic L/D performance of the AST-100 is summarized in Fig. 4.9 for approach, takeoff and initial climb with 20° flaps, and climb out with 5° flaps. The effect of various flap angle settings on L/D is shown in Fig. 4.10. For takeoff and climbout, the L/D of the AST-100 is about 0.82 greater than that estimated for its predecessor reference aircraft as shown in comparing the data given in Table 4.3. The improvement for approach L/D is about 0.26. These improvements in L/D are attributed to updated test data and the application of newly discovered leading edge scaling effects [8,33]. The resulting takeoff-climb values of 7.5-8.5 are considerably in excess of the Concorde's L/D of 4.0 [28]. This improvement, about doubling the Concorde's low-speed aerodynamic performance, means that an AST has significantly improved *potential* for climbing over the community at noise levels significantly lower than those of the Concorde.

The noise analysis of the AST-100 [8] indicated that suppression would be required because the tradeoffs between oversizing the engine for noise and range were less attractive than those between suppression and range. They also indicated that it was desirable to accelerate the aircraft prior to cutback for the 3.5 n. mile takeoff measurement location, such that the flaps could be reduced from 20 to 5 degrees in accordance with the reduced C_L requirement associated with the higher speed. The solution found, was a takeoff at approximately 209 knots with an acceleration to 241 knots at 700 ft altitude (minimum allowed altitude for cutback for FAR-36 certification) 19,500 feet from start of takeoff roll. Note that this speed is just below the 250 knot FAA maximum speed limit for operation below 10,000 feet altitude. With this profile, the C_L required is reduced from 0.44 to 0.38 and the $L/_D$ for climbout is increased from 8.63



4-14

teres and the production of the terms of terms

and the second second



÷ 1

FIG.	FLIGHT CONDITION	CONFIG.	FLAP ANGLE	GEAR	cL	GRD. EFFECT	L/D At c _l	MAXIMUM L/D
	Takeoff & Initial	Reference	20 ⁰	DN	.44	In	6.70	6.75
•	Climb (Ap- prox 208 Knots)	AST 100	20 ⁰	DN	.44	In	7.52	8.09
2		Reference	5 ⁰	VP	.44	Out	7.80	10.87
2	(Approx. 220 knots)	AST 100	5 ⁰	UP	.44	Qut	8.63	13.53
3	APPROACH	Reference	20 ⁰	DN	.55	Out	5.75	6.75
	(Approx. 159 knots)	AST 100	200	DN	.55	Out	5.91	8.00

TABLE 4.3COMPARISON OF LOW SPEED LIFT-DRAG OF REFERENCE (1973) AST WITH AST-100.
(From Ref. 8)

*Note: Climbout condition developed for AST-100 optimum noise takeoff profile was at a speed of 241 knots a C_{l} of approximately 0.38 and an L/D of 10.1.

to 10.1 (see Fig. 4.9). Because of the higher L/D in climbout the engines could be throttled back in cutback by a greater amount, leading to reduced noise while meeting the 4% climb gradient and one engine out level flight requirements of FAR Part 36 certification regulations [186].

The engine was sized for cruise thrust, which for this design, gave it an ample thrust margin for meeting the desired 10,500 ft takeoff field length and attaining 700 feet altitude prior to cutback. Consequently, it was possible to operate the engine at constant part power thrust during the takeoff roll and initial climbout. The thrust was chosen by finding an engine jet velocity (within the allowable thrust range) at which both the sideline and takeoff noise suppression requirements were thought to be equal, see Fig. 4.11. This condition occurred with a 2470 ft/sec jet exit velocity and a thrust of 50,433 lbs on a standard +10°C Day. This thrust is only 77% of the available engine thrust and provides an operating thrust to weight ratio of about 0.28. Note: for this design the application of an advanced controlled throttle takeoff procedure (section 3.5) would probably increase significantly the altitude of the aircraft prior to cutback, and enable its acceleration to 250 knots, both outcomes reducing the community noise under the takeoff path.

The suppression requirement found in this analysis was 4.9 dB, allowing for a +1.5 dB trade at *both* sideline and takeoff measurement locations using the margin of at least 3 dB presumably achieved relative to the approach requirement. The estimated unsuppressed EPNL values along the centerline and sideline are shown in Figs. 4.12 and 4.13, respectively.





۰.

4-19

ويرابع الرواد المتعادية متعاصين متراس

4.2 Integrated Airframe-Propulsion Noise Studies

FAR Part 36 (1969)

The design optimization program used to evolve the AST-102 was applied to analysis of the range changes resulting from imposition of noise constraints on the range of the AST, when it is equipped with one of four engine type [147]. The engines studied were:

- GE-4 turbojet with afterburner from US-SST program
- Pratt and Whitney variable stream control engine (VSCE) in 502 series
- Pratt and Whitney rear valve engine (RVE) in 112 series
- General Electric double bypass variable cycle engine (DBE) in GE 21 series.

For each engine design the aircraft thrust-weight ratio (engine size) and wing loading were selected to maximize range, holding gross takeoff weight and payload at 718 and 61 thousand pounds, respectively, and cruise mach number at 2.62.

The five cases investigated included the no constraint case together with four cases that included the constraints on field length, takeoff and approach speed, and climb and cruise thrust margin utilized in the AST-102 study, together with

• no noise constraint

סדמי אחרי ווויי

- 108 EPNL without suppression (assumes co-annular effect unknown)
- 108 EPNL with suppression
- 108 EPNL with suppression and 12500 ft fielding.

4-20

والموادية والمتعادية والمعجم والمتعادين

The noise was calculated in accordance with the methods of Reference 8 with the following suppression allowances:

÷ .

GE4 - 8 dB mechanical suppressor (5% thrust loss and 7% increase in engine weight)

VSCE - up to 10 EPN dB coannular effect at maximum throttle RVE - up to 5 EPN dB coannular effect at maximum throttle DBE - up to 9 EPN dB coannular effect at maximum throttle.

The takeoff was generally constrained to initiate cutback and flap retraction to 5° at 700 ft altitude and 19,500 feet from start of roll, after accelerating to maximum speed consistent with this profile, the other constraints and the available takeoff thrust margin. For each noise constraint case the sideline and takeoff EPNL was calculated as a function of absolute partial power thrust used and an engine scale factor (ESF), see the example in Fig. 4.14. The partial thrust and ESF values that were estimated to result in meeting the 108 EPNL requirements at each of the two measurement locations were then compared to determine the values of both partial power takeoff thrust and ESF which uniquely meet both requirements, see example in Fig. 4.15.

The resulting engine size for the configurations is an engine whose maximum installed sea level takeoff thrust on a standard +10°C day is the value of the derived engine scale factor times the full power thrust associated with an ESF of 1.0. For the example shown in Figs. 4.14 and 4.15, the selected ESF is 0.90, and the engine is sized at 57,887 lbs (0.90 x 64,319 lbs reference for ESF = 1.0).



DECT OODU AUAU ADI D

The variation of sideline noise at constant partial power thrust as a function of ESF in Fig. 4.14a represents the effect of the change in jet exit velocity with a change in the ratio of partial thrust to installed thrust (ESFX reference thrust). Thus, at a constant partial power thrust, the noise decreases as ESF increases because the required jet exit velocity required to attain the constant partial thrust decreases.

The variation of takeoff noise at constant partial power thrust as a function of ESF shown in Fig. 4.14b behaves in the same manner as that on the sideline. However, unlike the sideline case, higher values of constant thrust result in lower noise levels. The higher values of constant thrust during the initial takeoff enable a greater aircraft speed at cutback, hence lower C_L requirement, higher L/D and a resulting lower value of thrust after cutback with its lower value of noise.

The engine sizes chosen from these analyses are shown on the thumbprints for each engine type shown in Fig. 4.16. The optimum ranges for an all supersonic mission are summarized in Table 4.4. These results indicate a significant range penalty to meet the 108 EPNL requirement for the older afterburning GE-4 engine, particularly when noise control is accomplished by oversizing the engine to reduce jet velocity rather than including a suppressor. For the assumption of this study the results suggest that the imposition of a 108 EPNL FAR Part 36 (1969) rule impose little or no penalty in range for the AST-100 family aircraft derivatives when powered with advanced technology variable cycle engines. A similar conclusion can be drawn from a McDonnell Douglas study [117] of various 1978-82 technology engines in their study AST aircraft. The aircraft is configured to carry 225 passengers at a cruise mach number of 2.2 over ranges in excess of 4000 n. miles with a takeoff gross weight of 705 thousand lbs.

ココンオ シンシン ト・・・・

į





TABLE 4.4 RANGE SUMMARY - ENGINE STUDY ALL SUPERSONIC MISSION (From Ref. 147)*

Condition .	Cruise Thrust Margin	Climb Thrust Margin	Field Length Restraint	GE4	VSCE	RVE	DBE
No Restraint	None	None	llone	3224	4067	4270	3611
No Noise Restraint	1.1	1.2	(10500 ft)	3002	3625	3752	3329
108 EPNdD, No Suppression	1.1	1.2	(10500 ft)	1969	3543	3490	3109
108 EPNdB, With Suppression	1.1	1.2	(10500 ft)	2601	3625	3714	3247
108 EPNdB, With Suppression	1.1	1.2	(12500 ft)	N/A	3812	3/52	3329
108 EPNdB, With Suppression	None	None	(12500 ft)	N/A	3812	3934	3475

.

*For the VSCE, RVE and DBE engines the "suppression" is the coannular noise reduction and the "no suppression" is based on the calculated noise, assuming the coannular effect were unknown.

١

11111

The engines used in the study are shown in Fig. 4.17; the 1978 engines are mini or low bypass turbojets. The 1982 engines include the 1978 engines uprated to an assumed 1982 technology status, and two variable cycle engines derated from nominal 1985-9 technology to assumed 1982 technology. The noise estimates were based on manufacturers' suppressed and unsuppressed data, except that where the MDC suppressor was utilized it was assumed to provide a peak suppression of 13 PNdB.

Figure 4.18 presents the range vs engine size summary with the selected size for each engine indicated with a symbol. The symbol used indicates the controlling constraint; either takeoff field length of 11,000 ft, climb thrust-drag ratio of 1.1 or maximum range. These results indicate that while all objectives can be met with 1978 technology engines, significant range improvements are anticipated with later technology engines.

The noise levels predicted for sideline and cutback positions for these six cases are given in Table 4.5. The P & WA LBE 435 (1978) engine has a margin of 6 dB on sideline and 2 dB at cutback, both relative to the FAR 36 (1969) requirement of 108 EPNdB. However, it does not quite meet the FAR 36 Stage 3 requirements of approximately 100 EPNdB on sideline and 105 EPNdB at cutback.

4-27

1

1978 TECH	GE MINI BYPASS GE21/J1003 AIRFLOW 760 LB/SEC WEIGHT (ENGINE AND NOZZLE) LENGTH (INTAKE FACE TO NOZZLE) MAX DIAMETER SLS THRUST	15,101 LB 203,5 IN, 80,3 IN, 57,069 LB
Ч <u></u> 1978 ТЕСН	P&WA LBE 435 AIRFLOW 767 LB/SEC WEIGHT (ENGINE AND NOZZLE) LENGTH (INTAKE FACE TO NOZZLE) MAX DIAMETER SLS THRUST	15,264 <u>LB</u> 335.0 in. 81.3 in. 55,718 LB
1982 TECH	GE MINI DYPASS GE21/J1084 AINFLOW 657 LD/SEC WEIGHT (ENGINE AND NDZZLE) LENGTH (INTAKE FACE TO NOZZLE) MAX DIAMETER SLS THRUST	12,067 L.0 260,3 IN. 74.3 IN. 53,727 L.0
	PBWA LBE 431 AIAFLOW 720 LB/SEC WEIGHT (ENGINE AND NOZZLE) LENGTH (INTAKE FACE TO NOZZLE) MAX DIAMETER SLS THAUST	14,170 LU 326.5 IN. 70,2 IN. 52,009 LG
< <u></u>	'GE DB/VCE GE21/J11B16 AIRFLOW B16 LB/SEC WEIGHT (ENGINE AND NO2ZLE) LENGTH (INTAKE FACE TO NOZZLE) MAX DIAMETER SLS THRUST	11,360 LB 274,7 IN. 73.0 IN. 53,532 LB
<[] 1982 ТЕСН	P&WA VSCE 511D AIRFLOW 750 LB/SEC WEIGHT (ENGINE AND NOZZLE) LENGTH (INTAKE FACE TO NOZZLE) MAX DIAMETER SLS THRUST	246.0 lb 80.3 in. 60,751 lb

FIG. 4.17 DESCRIPTION OF ENGINES USED IN MCDONNELL DOUGLAS STUDY. (From Ref. 117)

1978 TEC







.

ţê,

sini-



FIG. 4.18 SUMMARY OF RANGE VS ENGINE REFERENCE AIRFLOW FOR ENGINES IN McDONNELL DOUGLAS STUDY FOR A MACH 2.2 AIRCRAFT WITH A 225 PASSENGER (46,000 LB) PAYLOAD, 705,000 TAKEOFF GROSS WEIGHT MEETING FAR Part 36(1969) TAKEOFF NOISE REQUIREMENTS. (From Ref. 117)

ENGINE	ASSUMED TECHNOLOGY DATE	SIDELINE	CUTBACK	ALTITUDE AT 3.5 NAUTICAL MILES (Feet)
GE21/J10B3	1978	108	108	1391
GE21/J10B4	1982	106	110	1168
P&WA LBE 435	1978	102	106	1234
P&WA LBE 431R	1982	104	106	1165
GE21/J11B16 (DB VCE) P&WA VSCE 511D	1982 1982	106 106	110 107	; 1378 1192

TABLE 4.5	PREDICTED TAKEOFF NOISE LEVELS (EPNdB) AT FAR PART 36 MEASUREMENT
	LOCATIONS FOR MCDONNELL DOUGLAS STUDY WITH MACH 2.2, 705,000 LB
	AST WITHOUT TOLERANCES FOR AIRCRAFT PERFORMANCE OR NOISE.
	(From Ref. 117)

Reducing Noise to FAR 36 - 5 EPNdB

The SCAR program objectives in noise included investigating the effect of two assumed possible goals: FAR Part 36 (1969) and FAR Part 36 (1969) - 5 EPNdB. The engine manufacturers' studies [4,5,68 and 69] developed engine and noise data for integrated airframe-engine designs to assess the effects of various noise goals and these data were also applied by NASA to various aircraft designs [208, 211].

A 1976 NASA study [208] assessed the effect of varying FAR takeoff field length and sideline noise goals on the range performance of the NASA reference AST aircraft [134] and a derivative of the Boeing 2707-300 aircraft for four engine types. Pertinent aircraft and engine characteristics are given in Tables 4.6 and 4.7, The two aircraft were chosen to represent the range between "optimistic" advanced design (Reference AST) and conservative "older" design (B-2707). The engines were from the Phase II study results [4,68], but without the manufacturers' normal margins in quoting performance and weight.

The effect of engine sizing without either field length or noise constraints is given in Fig. 4.19. As would be expected, the "older" conservative aircraft design exhibited less range than that of the advanced design, regardless of engine type. The low bypass engine (LBE 405B) showed poorer range than the three variable cycle engines because of its greater weight, poorer subsonic SFC and more conservative assumed technology. In general, the optimum SLS corrected airflow was near 700 lbs/second, which would yield relatively low thrust to weight ratios on takeoff with consequent long field lengths and high velocity jets and noise.

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		ntanæ 🥻
Characteciscic	NASA/LANG. LTV 1973 Reference	Boeing B2707- 300 Derivative
Takeoff groza wight, 10	762 300	790. arn
leader of pessengers	242	273
Payleid, 10	61 G28	57 057
Inference wing area, [1 ²	9969	7765
Operating empty leas podded proparatos reight, 1b	259 913	271 920
Life-off C _L	9.55 [·]	G.70

TABLE 4.6 MAJOR AIRPLANE CHARACTERISTICS FOR FIELD LENGTH/SIDELINE NOISE STUDY. (From Ref. 208)

TABLE 4.7 ENGINE CYCLE, WEIGHT, AND DIMENSIONAL CHARACTERISTICS FOR FIELD-LENGTH/SIDELINE NOISE STUDIES (PHASE II PERFORMANCE [4, 68]. (From Ref. 208)

-

.

·

Character istic	7672 Las 4058	75CZ 5028	7684 702 1120	6221/39 52047 81
Pan promoure ratio	4.1	1, 1	5.0	3.1/4.0
SYPARE SALLO	01	1.3	2.5	0.7/0.4
OPPEALL PERMANEN CALL	17	20	25	22.4
Bax, conductor enit teoperature, f	2600	2800 ⁻	2800/1900	2826
total corrected sirflow, 15/sec	900	900	900	900 / 740
Adjusted esgine wight, including satt./Tor., 1b	15 200	13 085	13 156	- 13 250
rotal weight per pod. 10	20 960	18 725	19 086	17 690

4-32

0707 0070 LULI

į Î Figures 4.20 and 4.21 show the effect of the two takeoff field length and noise constraints on the Boeing and NASA AST reference aircraft. The ranges are less than the maximum values found for the unconstrained designs of Fig. 4.19, reflecting the higher values of corrected airflow required to meet the constraints. The same reason explains the reduction of range resulting from reducing the field length at constant noise.

The percentage reduction in range for a 5 EPNdB reduction for each field length constraint and aircraft and engine type are summarized in Table 4.8. These percentage range reductions are, in most cases remarkably consistent between the two airplane designs. They are higher with the 10,500 ft field length, probably because this shorter field length requires higher takeoff thrust, and thus more inherent noise. The principal variation in these reductions occurs among engines with the GE21 double bypass showing the least effect (0 to 5.4% reduction) and the low bypass engine the greatest effect (6.6-10.8% reduction).

The results of a more recent study [211] which compared the ranges for several engine types and an AST-100 type aircraft are given in Fig. 4.22. These results indicate that the variable cycle engines, 502B, DBE and DCE, have significantly more promise than the turbojets, CTJ and GE4, in providing useful range while meeting the combined constraints of 10,500 ft field length and sideline noise of FAR 36-5 EPNdB. Unfortunately, the effect of the 5 dB reduction in noise cannot be separated from the combined effect of the two constraints to compare directly with the pre-vious study data given in Table 4.8.

4-33

コーフィ





.

1

FIG. 4.20 EFFECT OF F.A.R. TAKEOFF FIELD LENGTH AND SIDELINE NOISE LEVEL ON RANGE OBTAINED WITH VARIOUS ENGINE TYPES INSTALLED IN THE BOEING MACH 2.32 AIRPLANE. TAKEOFF GROSS WT. 750,000 LBS, 273 PASSENGER PAYLOAD.

4-35

. از ماهمی میان می ورده امینانیم در درده از می ورد و ورد و ماریخ و ماریخ و ماریخ از ماریخ از ماریخ ا

a series and a series of

. . .




FIG. 4.21

EFFECT OF F.A.R. TAKEOFF FIELD LENGTH AND SIDELINE NOISE LEVEL ON RANGE OBTAINED WITH VARIOUS ENGINE TYPES INSTALLED IN THE NASA REFERENCE AST MACH 2.32 AIRPLANE. TAKEOFF GROSS WEIGHT, 762,000 LBS, 292 PASSENGER PAYLOAD. (From Ref. 208)

والمراجع والمراجع والمحمد والم

The second se

	TAKEOFF FIELD LENGTH				
AIRPLANE	12000	Feet	10500 Feet		
	NASA*	Boeing**	NASA	Boeing	
Takeoff Gross Weight (1000 lbs) Cruise Mach Number Passenger Payload	762 2.32 292	750 2.32 273	762 2.32 292	750 2.32 273	
ENGINE TYPE					
Paw LBE 405B	6.6	6.8	10.2	10.8	
GE21/J9B1	1.1	0	3.2	5.4	
P&W VSCE 502B	5.1	3.8	8.0	6.7	
P&W VCE 112B***	6.7	6.3	7.7	7.9	

TABLE 4.8 PERCENTAGE REDUCTION IN RANGE RESULTING FROM REDUCING SIDELINE NOISE FROM 108 TO 103 EPNL FOR TWO VALUES OF TAKEOFF FIELD LENGTH, TWO AIRCRAFT AND 4 ENGINE TYPES. (From Ref. 208).

> * NASA Reference AST with Arrow Wing, most Advanced AERO ±1341, Range: 3750-4725

** Boeing Derivative of 2707, most conservative AERO, Range: 3400-3975

*** The noise estimates may be quite overoptimistic for this engine because of coannular effect assumption. [208].

•

ويراجع والمتحدية والمعانيين المتعجر المتحدة فتعود متقسيت وسنادي

a) Pratt & Whitney Engine Comparison





FIG. 4.22 RELATIVE RANGE COMPARISONS FOR VARIOUS ENGINES IN AST-100 TYPE AIRCRAFT AS A FUNCTION OF ENGINE AIRFLOW, TOGETHER WITH THE EFFECT OF COMBINED FIELD LENGTH AND SIDELINE NOISE CONSTRAINTS. (From Ref. 211)

A summary [119] of the predicted tradeoffs between range and noise of the NASA reference AST [134] and a post 1985 version of the G.E. double bypass engine is shown in Fig. 4.23. The AST was operated at a cruise mach number of 2.4. For the study the payload remained constant while the nominal gross takeoff weight of 762,000 lbs and range varied with engine configuration. The results indicate that mechanical suppressors offer good potential in reducing noise at a low cost in range. Their use at a constant range of 4000 miles produces benefits of 5-9 EPNdB depending upon complexity. Alternatively, attaining 5dB reduction at the sideline for the two unsuppressed engines costs a range penalty of approximately 11%.

The unsuppressed coannular nozzle just meets the 1969 sideline requirements at a 4000 mile range and is almost 2 dB in excess of the requirement at cutback. With the most complex suppression analyzed, the sideline level can be reduced about 6 EPNdB below the requirement and the cutback level about 4 EPNdB below the requirement, not quite meeting the FAR 36 Stage III requirements.



4.3 Potential Impact vs. Flight Procedures

The basic noise certification procedures in FAR Part 36 apply to subsonic transport category aircraft. Both the flight procedures and the certification levels have resulted from detailed study of the performance characteristics of subsonic aircraft. If the certification procedures were to be revised to include supersonic transport aircraft, they would probably incorporate some new procedures appropriate to the performance characteristics of such aircraft. However, the exact form of these possible changes is not known at this time.

Supersonic aircraft have a higher thrust-to-weight ratio, and poorer lift drag ratio than subsonic aircraft, and more sophisticated computer control capability. Furthermore, their engines are designed for continuous operation at high power settings, whereas engines for subsonic aircraft are designed for only short durations at full power. These differences have significant implications for the relationship between the noise level under the flight path, the levels at the certification locations and the procedures used to fly the aircraft.

McDonnell Douglas studied [39] the effect of various procedures on the noise characteristics of the MDC AST. All employed constant throttle prior to cutback, and did not include the additional potential possibly available from programed throttles (see Sec.3.5). The variation of noise level directly under the flight path is illustrated for several procedures in Figure 4.24 for a turbojet engine with MDC's stowable suppressor. In four of the cases [3,4, 6 and 7] the full suppressed power is resumed shortly after passing the takeoff monitor so that the cutback is for a short duration. With this procedure, the certification levels may be attained, but the noise subsequently increases further down the flight path.

4-41

However, because of the short duration of cutback, there is not much loss of altitude relative to a full suppressed power takeoff, and the levels at greater distances down the path become comparable to those for the full power takeoff, Case 1. When cutback is maintained and climb proceeds at a 4% gradient, Case 2, the noise level monotonically decreases with distance after cutback along the flight path. But, because of the slow climb rate and the higher drag associated with speeds less than 250 knots, the noise level beyond approximately 30,000 ft. from start of roll is greater than that associated with a full suppressed power takeoff. This result is similar to that shown for Concorde in Fig. 2.4. The 90, 100 and 110 EPNL contours associated with the procedures studied for both takeoff and approach are illustrated in Fig. 4.25.

Table 4.9 presents the areas associated with the seven contour sets for takeoff and the estimated certification levels for each of the procedures. From this study it is clear that there is no absolute relationship between certification levels and contour areas. However, there is a suggestion that an inverse relationship may exist, i.e., higher certification levels (no cutback) produces the smallest contour area. Compare the results for Cases 1 and 2. Table 4.9 also presents similar data for the three approach procedures studied.

The study results for takeoff indicate the desirability of accelerating to 250 knots (maximum allowable climb speed below 10,000 ft) as soon as possible so that flaps can be retracted as appropriate, and their drag minimized. If cutback is utilized to achieve the 3.5 n. mile takeoff levels, power should be reapplied gradually with a programed throttle schedule designed to ensure that the noise does not increase after the takeoff measurement location point, and to minimize the length and area of the contours and thus, the probable magnitude of the impact.

4-42

ה ויעי וועאו אפרע עמרע ב





I



PROCED		AREA (SO. N.MI.)			CERTIFICATION NOISE in EPNdB	
URE NUMBER	PROCEDURES	90 EPNdB	100 EPNdB	110 EPNdB	Sideline 0.35 N.Mi.	Takeoff 3.5 N.Mi.
1	<u>TAKEOFF</u> Full Suppressed Power	21.94	6.25	1.24	104	112
2	Cutback at 1100 ft, Speed at V2+10 knots, climb at 4% gradient at cutback power	35.96	6.34	1.15	104	107
3	Cutback at 700 ft, Climb at max. suppressed power after monitor	22.88	6.65	1.21	103	110
4	Cutback at 1100 ft., climb at max. suppressed power after monitor	22.88	6.59	1.17	104	107
5	*Cutback at 1300 ft, Suppressor retracted at 5000 ft, climb at max. unsuppressed power after monitor	36.40	11.26	1.22	104	107
6	Cutback at 1100 ft, with air- craft speed held at V_2 , climb at maximum unsuppressed power after monitor	23.08	6.83	1.13	104	107
7	*Cutback 3 sec. before monitor, aircraft speed max. prior to monitor [V ₂ +37 knots], climb at max. suppressed power after monitor.	21.17	5.96	1.34	ORDITELOAPTON	to RDN/R
	APPROACH				Approach 1 N.	Mi.
1	Standard (3°)	6.74	0.73	•04	108	• [
2	*2 Segment (6°) & (3°)	2.56	0.67	.04	107	
3	*20 KEAS Decelerating Approach	3.65	0.46	.02	107	

1967 Bar Manadowa Makala Jawa 19 ya ya 1967 ya 1967 Bar 1967 Bar 1967 Manado Manadowa 1967 Manadowa 19

TABLE 4.9 SUPERSONIC CRUISE CONFIGURATION TAKEOFF CONTOUR AREAS (SQ.N.MI.) AND ESTIMATED CERTIFICATION LEVELS FOR VARIOUS TAKEOFF AND APPROACH PROCEDURES, WITH MDC-AST, (from Ref.39)

بالمشكلة

.

*Not in conformance with Part 36 Procedures.

والمراد والمتحالية المتحافظ والمحافظة فالمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ

5tr-tr

1

DECT CONV ANAN

5. CONCLUSIONS

The noise design goal that has received the greatest attention in the NASA program is the FAR 36 Stage 2 certification requirements. The preponderant evidence in this report from the NASA program and the engine and airframe manufacturers is that this goal is achievable. The technology required for a Mach 2.2 AST meeting this noise goal with an immediate initiation of detailed design (Class 1 technology by ICAO definition), is primarily "current" and "available" by the EPA definition, although some might be considered "future."

For an initiation of detailed design in the mid 1980s, a Mach 2.55-2.7 AST could be developed, utilizing primarily Class 2 and 3 or "available" and "future" aerodynamic, structure, engine cycle and noise control technologies. Such an aircraft would be expected to have higher performance margins, and lower risk in terms of meeting the Stage 2 noise limits. However, if it were to just meet the Stage 2 noise limits it would be noisier than new subsonic aircraft introduced in a comparable time period. Such subsonic aircraft would be expected to meet at least the Stage 3 noise limits. Airframe manufacturers [55,60] recognize that this situation may not be tolerable, and that Stage 3 or more restrictive noise certification limits might have to be faced in the 1980s in the design of an acceptable AST.

The FAR Part 36 certification regulations were developed for subsonic category aircraft. Their certification flight test procedures and noise limits were based on the performance characteristics of subsonic aircraft. Consequently, they do not necessarily serve as an appropriate design goal for an AST, and were never intended for such use. However, because they exist they become the de facto AST design guidelines and constraints.

5-1

Their application to AST design, as shown in some of the studies reported here, often led to oversizing engines to operate at part power takeoff and a climbout profile that has a minimum climb gradient which, in effect, stretches the noise contours for much greater distances along the flight track than those of subsonic aircraft of comparable size and range. Thus, the potential impact on people of the AST is often greater than that of the subsonic aircraft even when it meets the same certification limits.

Because of its inherent design requirements an optimum AST will probably have a greater noise potential than a comparable subsonic aircraft. However, it will also probably have the capability to accelerate to the 250 knot speed limits in a relatively short distance after rotation and to thereafter climb in a clear aerodynamic configuration. This potential capability would be enhanced if it is allowed to use optimum power management during takeoff [40]. The use of these potentially available positive noise control characteristics should be encouraged to achieve an optimized minimum noise impact AST.

In order to promote the design of an environmentally acceptable AST a set of goals should be established for the designers. These goals should be stated in terms of impact potential, such as footprint areas and tolerances on the gross dimensions of specific contours [39,55], rather than the levels at the current measurement locations. The numbers assigned to the goals should be selected to obtain a desired level of compatibility between supersonic and subsonic aircraft of comparable size, route structure and time of entry into service. Further, the goals should allow a maximum latitude in developing takeoff and landing flight and power management procedures, consistent with proper flight and air traffic control safety requirements. With the development of design goals that relate directly to environmental impact potential, and the relaxation of subsonic derived flight procedures, it should be possible for the designer to optimize AST design for the real world environmental requirements, as well as for range, payload and economic viability.

LIST OF REFERENCES

- Abdelhamid, A.N., et al., "Noise Characteristics of Combustion Augmented High-Speed Jets," Paper 73-189 pres. at AIAA 11th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., Washington, D.C., 10-12 January 1973.
- Agard, "Variable Geometry and Multicycle Engines," pres. at 48th Mtg. of AGARD Propulsion and Energetics Panel, held at the Ecole-Nationale Superieure des Tech. Avancees, Paris, 5-9 Sep 1976, AD/A040189.
- 3. Agard, "Flight Test Techniques," Proc. of Flight Mechanics Panel Symp., PORZ Wahn, W. Germany, 11-14 Oct 1976, AGARD CP-233, N77-24107.
- Allan, R.D., "Advanced Supersonic Propulsion System Technology Study, Phase 2: Final Report," Dec. 1975, NASA CR-134913.
- Allan, R.D. and W. Joy, "Advanced Supersonic Propulsion Study, Phase 3 and 4: Final Report," Nov. 1977, NASA CR-135236.
- 6. Amiet, R.K., "Correction of Open Jet Wind Tunnel Measurements for Shear Layer Refraction," AIAA Paper 75-532, Mar. 1975.
- Arnaiz, H.H., "Flight Measured Lift and Drag Characteristics of a Large, Flexible, High Supersonic Cruise Airplane," May 1977, NASA TM X-3532.
- Baber, H.T., Jr. and E.E. Swanson, "Advanced Supersonic Technology Concept AST-100 Characteristics Developed in a Baseline Update Study," 16 Jan. 1976, NASA TM X-72815.
- Baber, H.T., Jr. and C. Driver, "Advanced Supersonic Cruise Aircraft Technology," Acta Astronautica, Vol. 4, Jan.-Feb. 1977, pp. 111-129.
- 10. Balsa, T. and P.R. Gliebe, "Aeroacoustics Axisymmetric Single and Dual Flow Exhaust Nozzles," Paper 77-924 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Joint Propulsion Conf., 11-13 July 1977, Orlando, Florida.
- 11. Barra, V., S. Slutsky, and S. Pannunzio, "Ambient and Induced Pressure Fluctuations in Supersonic Jet Flows," Paper 75-482 Pres. at AIAA 2nd Aeroacoustics Conf., Hampton, VA, 24-26 Mar. 1975.

and the second second second second second

- 12. Benzakein, M.J., et al., "Supersonic Jet Exhaust Noise," Report No. USAF APL-TR-72-52, 1972.
- 13. Berrier, B.L., "A Review of Several Propulsion Integration Features Applicable to Supersonic Cruise Fighter Aircraft," NASA TM X-73991, Dec. 1976.
- Besson, P., "Introduction to Concorde," Paper 73035 Pres. at SAE Air Trans. Mtg., Miami, 24-26 Apr. 1973.
- 15. Bibliography of SST Reports, Noise Regulation Reporter, No. 89, 10 Oct. 1977, pp. A-27-A-29.
- 16. Bishop, D.W., J.F. Mills and J.N. Beckmann, "Effective Perceived Noise Level Versus Distance Curves for Civil Aircraft," BBN Report 2747R, February 1976.
- 17. Blume, John A. and Associates/Research Division, "Structural Reaction Program, National Sonic Boom Study Project," Report FAA-SST-65-15, Vol. 2, AD 474799, Prepared for FAA, Apr. 1965.
- Blume, John A., and Associates/Research Division, "The Effects of Sonic Boom on Structural Behavior - A Supplementary Analysis Report," Report FAA-SST-65-18. AD475662, Prepared for FAA, Oct. 1965.
- Boeing Commercial Aircraft Co., "Study of Structural Design Concepts for an Arrow Wing Supersonic Transport Configuration, Vol. 1: Tasks 1 and 2 Final Report," NASA CR-132576-V.1, Aug. 1976.
- 20. Boeing Commercial Aircraft Co., "Study of Structural Design Concepts for an Arrow Wing Supersonic Transport Configuration, Vol. 2: Tasks 1 and 2 Final Report," NASA CR-132576-V.2., Aug. 1976.
- 21. Boeing Commercial Aircraft Co., "Oblique Wing Transonic Transport Configuration Development: Final Report," NASA CR-151928, Jan. 1977.
- 22. Bower, R.E., "The Promise of Advanced Technology for Future Air Transports," Pres. at SAE 1978 International Air Transport Meeting, Boston, 1-4 May 1978.
- 23. Boyer, E., S.J. Morris and W.E. Foss, "Assessment of Variable-Cycle Engines for Supersonic Transports," Pres. at 48th Propulsion and Energetic Panel Mtg., AGARD, Sep. 1976.

R-2

A feature of the second s

And the second sec

- 24. Brausch, J.F., "Flight Velocity Influence on Jet Noise of Conical Ejector, Annular Plug, and Segmented Suppressor Nozzles," NASA CR-120961, Aug. 1972.
- Burgess, E.H., "The Concorde Manufacturing Consortium An Exercise in International Engineering Collaboration," SAE Paper No. 730350 Pres. at Air Trans. Mtg., Miami, 24-26 Apr. 1973.
- 26. Burley, R.R. and R.J. Karabinus, "Flyover and Static Tests to Investigate External Flow Effect on Jet Noise for Non-Suppressor and Suppressor Exhaust Nozzles," NASA TM X-68101, 1973.
- Burrin, R.H., et al., "The Generation and Radia. of Supersonic Jet Noise Turbulence Mixing Region Noise Data, Vol. 5, Append. 1, Report No. USAF APL TR 72-53, Jul. 1972.
- 28. Calder, P.H. and P.C. Gupta, "Future SST Engines with Particular Reference to Olympus 593 Evolution and Concorde Exper-·ience," SAE Paper 751056 Pres. at SAE Nat. Aerospace Eng. and Manufactur. Mtg., Culver City, CA, 17-20 Nov. 1975.
- 29. Calder, P. and P. Gupta, "Application of New Technology for Performance Improvement and Noise Reduction of Supersonic Transport Aircraft," Paper 77-830 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Propulsion Conf., Orlando, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
- 30. Calder, P.H. and J. Hoch, "Olympus 593 Experience in First Year of Commercial Service," SAE Paper 760888, Pres. at SAE Aerospace Eng. and Manufactur. Mtg., San Diego, CA, 27 Nov.-2 Dec. 1976.
- 31. Carlson, H.W., et al., "Application of Sonic Boom Minimization Concepts in Supersonic Transport Design," NASA TN D-7218, June 1973.
- 32. Chalupnik, J.D., ed., *Transportation Noises*, Univ. of Washington Press: Seattle, 1970.
- 33. Coe, P.L., Jr., et al., "Low Speed Wind Tunnel Investigation of an Advanced Supersonic Cruise Arrow-Wing Configuration," NASA TM-77043, July 1977.
- 34. Cooper, P.A. and R.R. Heldenfels, "The NASA Research on Structures and Materials for Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," NASA TM X-72790, Jan. 1976.

and the second second

35. Cooper, P.A. and R.R. Heldenfels, "The NASA Structures and Materials Program for Supersonic Cruise Aircraft, Astronautics & Aeronautics, Vol. 14, May 1976, pp. 26-37.

e 1

DICOT

SONG ANA

21

- 36. Doak, P.E., "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise, Vol. 3: Progress Toward a Unified Theory of Jet Engine Noise," USAF APL TR-72-53, July 1972.
- 37. Dosanjh, D.S. and A.N. Abdelhamid, "Reduction of Noise from Supersonic Jet Flows," Paper No. 70-236 Pres. at AIAA 8th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., New York, 19-21 Jan. 1970.
- 38. Dosanjh, D.S., et al., "Some Recent Developments in Supersonic Jet Noise Reduction," Paper No. 75-502 Pres. at AIAA 2nd Aeroacoustics Conf., Hampton, VA, 24-26 Mar. 1975.
- 39. Douglas Aircraft Co., "Aircraft Community Noise Impact Studies," NASA CR-145152, Jan. 1977.
- 40. Driver, Cornelius, "Progress in Supersonic Cruise Aircraft Technology," NASA TM 78695, May 1978.
- 41. D'Sylva, E., "Flow Fluid Analysis of Aircraft Configurations Using a Numerical Solution to the Three Dimensional Unified Supersonic/Hypersonic Small-Disturbance Equation: Part 2," NASA CR-1927, Boeing Co., Feb. 1972.
- 42. Eldred, K.M., "Far Field Noise Generation in Coaxial Flow Jet Exhausts, "FAA RD-71-101-1, Nov. 1971.
- 43. Eldred, K.M., et al., "Suppression of Noise with Emphasis on the Near Field," Report ASD-TDR 62-578, Wright Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio, 1963.
- Farquhar, B.W., D. Sloan, and R. Purves, "Investigation of Refracting Flows for Acoustic Suppression," Paper 77-920 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Joint Propulsion Conf., Orlandc, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
- 45. Ferguson, D.R. et al., "Supersonic Jet Exhaust Noise Investigation, Vol. 3 - Computer User's Manual for Aeroacoustic Predictions," Report No. USAF APL-TR-76-68, Vol. 3, July 1976.
- Ferri, A., "Possibilities and Goals for the Future SST," J. Aircraft, Vol. 12, No. 12 (Dec. 1975), pp. 919-929.

R = 4

وأراري المراجع والمراجع المراجع والمعربة ومعرفه والم

47. Ferri, A., "Selected Papers on Advanced Design of Air Vehicles, "AGARD AG-226, AD/A048875, Aug. 1977.

~

2724 2221

ı

- 48. Fetterman, D.E., Jr., "Preliminary Sizing and Performance Evaluation of Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," NASA TM X-73936, Sept. 1976.
- 49. Fink, M.R., "Airframe Noise Prediction Method," U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration Report FAA-RD-77-29, March 1977.
- 50. Fitzsimmons, R.D., "The Advanced Supersonic Transport --What It Is and How It Compares," Acta Astonautica, Vol. 4, Jan.-Feb. 1977, pp. 131-143.
- 51. Fitzsimmons, R.D. and W.C. Hoover, "AST A Fifth Engine for Environmental Consideration," SAE Paper 730849 Pres. at SAE Nat. Aerospace Eng. and Manufactur. Mtg., Los Angeles, 16-18 Oct. 1973.
- 52. Fitzsimmons, R.D. and W.T. Rowe, "AST Propulsion Comparisons," SAE Paper 750631 Pres. at SAE Air Transp. Mtg., Hartford, CT, 6-8 May 1975.
- 53. Fitzsimmons, R.D. and R.L. Roensch, "Advanced Supersonic Transport," SAE Paper 750617 Pres. at SAE Air Transp. Mtg., Hartford, CT, 6-8 May 1975.
- 54. Foss, R.L., "Supersonic Transport Development Considerations," SAE Paper 750632 Pres. at SAE Nat. Air Transp. Mtg., Hartford, CT, 6-9 May 1975.
- 55. Foss, R.L. and E.L. Bragdon, "Propulsion Technology Advances Needed for a Quiet Supersonic Transport," SAE Paper 730898 Pres. at SAE Nat. Aerospace Eng. and Manufactur. Mtg., Los Angeles, 16-18 Oct. 1973.
- 56. Foster, C.R., "Noise Regulations of the Federal Government," AIAA Paper 77-995 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Propulsion Conf., Orlando, FL 11-13 July 1977.
- 57. General Electric Corp., "Noise Data Accumulation, Analysis and Prediction Information for GE/ANECMA Technical Exchange," GE Report 4DD0006A01. Contract: FAA: FAA-SS-67-7, 15 Oct. 1970.
- 58. Goldberg, J.L., "The Concorde SST: Can Its Landing and Takeoff Noise Be Reduced?" Search, Vol. 3, Nos. 11-12, Nov/Dec 1972, pp. 427-434.

R-5

والواجر المرتيبة ومعتقد متراجع والم

- 59. Goodmanson, L.T. and A. Sigalla, "The Next SST What Will It Be?" Paper 77-797 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Propulsion Conf., Orlando, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
- 60. Goodmanson, L.T. and B. Williams, "Second Generation SST," SAE Paper 730349 Pres. at SAE Air Transp. Mtg., Miami, 24-26 April 1973.
- 61. Gutierrez, Q.A., "Aeroacoustic Studies of Coannular Nozzles Suitable for Supersonic Cruise Applications," Proc. of the SCAR Conf., NASA CP-001 Part 2, Nov. 1976, pp. 471-490.
- 62. Hardin, J.C., "Airframe Self Noise Four Years of Research," NASA Langley Research Center, Technical Memorandum, NASA TM X-73908, July 1976.
- 63. Hay, J.A., "Concorde-Community Noise," SAE Paper 760898 Pres. at SAE Aerospace Eng. and Manufactur. Mtg., San Diego, 29 Nov.-2 Dec. 1976.
- 64. Henderson, W.P., "Studies of Various Factors Affecting Drag Due to Lift at Subsonic Speeds," NASA TN D-3584, Oct. 1966.
- 65. Hines, R.W., "Advanced Supersonic Transport Propulsion Requirements," AIAA Paper 77-831 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Propulsion Conf., Orlando, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
- 66. Hoch, R.G. and M. Berthelot, "Use of the Bertin Airtrainer for the Investigation of Flight Effects on Aircraft Engine Exhaust Noise," Pres. at the 3rd AIAA Aeroacoustics Conf., Palo Alto, CA, July 20-23, 1976.
- 67. Hoffman, S., "Bibliography of Supersonic Cruise Aircraft Research (SCAR) Program from 1972 to mid-1977," NASA Reference Publication 1003, N78-12895, Nov. 1977.
- 68. Howlett, R. A., "Advanced Supersonic Propulsion Study, Phase 2 Final Report," NASA CR-134904, Pratt & Whitney Report 5312, Sept. 1975.
- 69. Howlett, R.A. et al., "Advanced Supersonic Propulsion Study, Phase 3 Final Report," Pratt & Whitney Aircraft Report 5461. NASA CR-135148. N77-15041, Dec. 1976.
- 70. Howlett, R.A. and H. Kozlowski, "Variable Cycle and Engines for Advanced Supersonic Transports," SAE Paper 751086 Pres. at SAE Nat. Aerospace Eng. and Manufactur. Mtg., Culver City, CA, 17-20 Nov. 1975.

R-6

and the second second

じ パクイ つつじく

Ì

- 71. Kozlowski, H., "Coannular Nozzle Noise Characteristics and Application to Advanced Supersonic Transport Engines," Proc. of the SCAR Conf., NASA CP-001, Part 2, Nov 1976, pp. 491-504.
- 72. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) Committee on Aircraft Noise (CAN) 5th Meeting, Montreal, 15-30 Nov 1976, "Noise Certification of Future Supersonic Aeroplanes (SSTs)," (Pres. by the Secretary) WP/2.
- 73. International Civil Avi tion Organization (ICAO) CAN/5-WR/17, Montreal, 15-30 Nov. 1976, (Pres. by Mr. Albert H. Odell).
- 74. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN/5-WF/26, Montreal, 15-30 Nov. 1976, (Pres. by Mr. A.L. McPike).
- 75. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN/5-WP/51, Montreal, 15-30 Nov. 1976, (Pres. by B.N. Melnikov).
- 76. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN/5-WP 59, Montreal, 15-30 Nov. 1976, (Pres. by J. Balazard and G. Smith).
- 77. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN/5-WP/60, Montreal, 15-30 Nov. 1976, (Pres. by C.R. Foster, USA).
- 78. International Civil Aviation Organization, Committee on Aircraft Noise, Working Group E, Initial Meeting Mar 7 to 10, 1977, Wash. DC, U.S.A
- 79. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "A Proposed Work Program for the Development of SST Noise Standard," Working Paper of US Representative Mtg. 7 March 1977. W/P-1.
- 80. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Synopsis of US Supersonic Transport Engine Noise Reduction Technology Program." Working paper of US Representative Mtg. 7 March 1977. W/P-2.
- 81. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Comments on SST Noise Technology and Certification Goals," Working Paper of US Representative Mtg., 7 March 1977. W/P-3.
- 82. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Noise Levels of Supersonic Transports Current Aircraft and Developed Versions," Working Paper of UK Representative Mtg., 7 Mar. 1977. WP/4.

an the second second

- 83. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Constraints on the Application of New Technology for the Reduction of Noise from Supersonic Transport Aircraft," Working Paper of UK Representative Mtg., 7 Mar 1977. WP/5.
- 84. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Technical Possibilities of Limiting Noise in Supersonic Transports of New Conception," Working Paper of French Representative Mtg., 7 Mar. 1977. WP/6.
- 85. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Translation of Memo dated 27 Jan. 1977, French Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977. WP/9.
- 86. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Overview of US Supersonic Cruise Aircraft Research Program (SCAR)," Mascitti, US/NASA Representative, Mtg., 7 Mar. 1977. WP/10.
- 87. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Working Outline of AIA Presentation by US/AIA Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/11.
- 88. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Noise Compatibility of Supersonic Transports," Working Paper of US/EPA Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/12.
- 89. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Development of a Unit to Quantify Effects of SST Noise on Public Health and Welfare," Working Paper of US/NASA Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/14.
- 90. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, Industry Presentation by US/Douglas Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/15.
- 91. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, Industry Presentation by US/Boeing Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/16.
- 92. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, Industry Presentation by US/Lockheed Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/17.

R-8

وروار والمتهاد ومعاودتها العمامة والمترا

RECT CODV

AVIAN

- 93. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, Industry Presentation by France/SNECMA Representative, Mtg. 7 March 1977, WP/18.
- 94. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, "Human Response to Aircraft Noise," Presentation by US/NASA Representative, Mtg. 7 March 1977. WP/19.
- 95. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E, Presentation by US/ NASA Representative, Mtg. 7 Mar. 1977, WP/21.
- 96. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) Working Group E, Mtg. of Silencer Panel (29 Apr. 1977) dated 18 May 1977. Submitted by J.A. Hay.
- 97. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Mtg. June 1977, General Principles for Preparation of Acoustic Requirements Applicable to Supersonic Aircraft. (France) W/P-2.
- 98. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise, "Evaluation of Jet Noise Suppression Potential," Working paper prepared by the Silencer Panel for Working Group E, June 1977, W/P-3.
- 99. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), Committee on Aircraft Noise (CAN), Working Group E, "US Parametric Studies of SST Noise Reduction Designs," Working Paper of US Representative, Mtg. 29 June 1977, WP/4.
- 100. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO), CAN WG/E, Report of the 2nd Meeting of the ICAO/CAN WG (London) 29 Jun.-1 Jul. 1977.
- 101. Interagency Group on International Aviation/Ad Hoc Group on Aviation Noise (Wash., D.C.): Informal Memorandum (NOISE/8-7) of 19 July 1977. Working Papers submitted by Committee on Aircraft Noise Working Group E at 29 June-1 July 1977 Mtg.
- 102. Interagency Group on International Aviation/Ad Hoc Group on Aircraft Noise (Wash., D.C.): Informal Memorandum (NOISE/15-77) 5 Aug. 1977. Draft reports of Working Group E, Pres. at 29 June-1 July 1977 Mtg. of Committee on Aircraft Noise.

R-9

103.	Interagency Group on International Aviation/Ad Hoc Group
	on Aircraft Noise (Wash., D.C.): Informal Memorandum
	(NOISE/19-77) 29 Oct. 1977. Preliminary Draft of Report
	of Working Group E Being developed for consideration at
	6th Committee on Aircraft Noise Mtg.

- 104. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN/5-WP/62. Report on Agenda 7, Appendix C: Terms of Reference of Working Group E (SSTs). Attachment to letter from Reilly to Myers 31 Oct. 1977.
- 105. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Report of Meeting of Parametric Design Study Subgroup and of the SST International Technical Experts, NASA Langley Research Ctr., Hampton VA, Jan 9-10, 1978.
- 106. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) "Final Report on Subcommittee on SST Noise Prediction Methods," 15 June 1978.
- 107. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Report of Meeting of Parametric Design Study Subgroup and of the SST International Technical Experts, Washington, D.C., July 11-13, 1978.
- 108. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Common Case Study (French Representative) 9-10 July 1978, W/P-1.
- 109. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Common Case Study, British Aerospace/Aircraft Group, 9-10 July 1978, W/P-2.
- 110. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Common Case Supersonic Aircraft Study Status Report, US Lockheed, 9-10 July 1978, W/P-3.
- 111. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, "Results of a Study to Design a Common Case Airplane for Calibration of Parametric Design Studies in Use for ICAO," 9-10 July 1978, W/P-4.
- 112. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Common Case Study (USSR), 9-10 July 1978, W/P-5.
- 113. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Parametric Study (Class 1 Technology), (France), 9-10 July 1978, W/P-6.

10101

R-10

114.	International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO)	CAN WG/E,
	"Advanced Supersonic Transport Parametric Stud	iles 2nd
	Progress Report," (United Kingdom), 9-10 July	1978, W/P-7.

- ·

and the second second second

- 115. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Parametric Study M2.7 Cruise Arrow Wing (Class III) (U.S. NASA), 9-10 July 1978, W/P-8.
- 116. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Parametric Study M2.7 Cruise Arrow Wing (Class III), U.S. Lockheed, 9-10 July 1978, W/P-9.
- 117. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Parametric Study M2.7 Cruise Arrow Wing (Class II), U.S. McDonnell Douglas), 9-10 July 1978, W/P-10.
- 118. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Parametric Study M2.7 Cruise Arrow Wing (Class III) (U.S. Boeing), 9-10 July 1978, W/P-11.
- 119. "Summary of FAA/GE High Velocity Jet Noise Suppression Program," prepared for WG/E Mtg. of SST International Technical Experts, Washington, DC, 11-14 July 1978, W/P-12.
- 120. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Report of the Economic Subcommittee, 11-13 July 1978, W/P-13.
- 121. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Automated Noise Abatement Operational Techniques-Status Report (U.S. Lockheed) 11-14 July 1978, W/P-14.
- 122. International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) CAN WG/E, Presentation of Parametric Study Results for Advanced Supersonic Transports (United Kingdom), W/P-15.
- 123. Ishimitsu, K.K., "Design and Analysis of Winglets for Military Aircraft, Final Report," Report FFDL-TR-76-6. AD/A029345, 3 Feb. 1976.
- 124. Jones, I.S.F., "Finite Amplitude Waves from a Supersonic Jet," AIAA Paper 71-151 Pres. at AIAA 9th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., New York, 25-27 Jan. 1971.
- 125. Kantola, R.A., "Jet and Suppressor Correlation Measurements," AIAA Paper 75-504 Pres. at AIAA 2nd Aeroacoustics Conf., Hampton, VA, 24-26 Mar. 1975.

R-11

DTOT AAAA 4444

•	126.	Kless, G.W. and A.D. Welliver, "Prospects for Variable- Cycle Engines for the Second Generation SST," SAE Paper 750630, Air Transportation Meeting, May 1975.
	127.	<pre>Knott, P.R., "Supersonic Jet Exhaust Noise Investigation, Vol. 1: Summary Report. Vol. 2: Technical Report," Report USAF APL-TR-76-68, June 1976.</pre>
	128.	Kozlowsky, H., A.B. Packman, and O. Gutierrez, "Aeroacoustic Performance Characteristics of Duct Burning Turbofan Ex- haust Nozzles," Paper 76-148 Pres. at AIAA 14th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., Washington, D.C., 26-28 Jan. 1976.
	129. •	Krebs, J.N. and R.D. Allen, "Supersonic Propulsion 1970- 1977," Paper 77-832 Pres. at AIAA/SAE 13th Joint Propul- sion Conf., Orlando, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
	130.	Laufer, J., R. Schlinker, and R.E. Kaplan, "Experiments on Supersonic Jet Noise," <i>AIAA J.</i> , Vol. 14, No. 4 (April 1976), pp. 489-497.
	131.	Lee, R., "Coannular Plug Nozzle Noise Reduction and Impact on Exhaust System Designs," Proceedings of SCAR Conf., NASA CP-001, Part 2, Nov. 1976, pp. 505-524.
	132.	Lilley, G.M. et al., "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Theory of Turbulence Generated Jet Noise, Noise Radiated from Upstream Sources and Com- bustion Noise," Report No. USAF APL TR-72-53, Vol. 4, July 1972.
	133.	Lilley, G.M., et al., "On the Theory of Jet Noise and Its Applications," Paper 73-987 Pres. at AIAA Aeroacoustics Conf., Seattle, 15-17 Oct. 1973.
	134.	LTV Aerospace Corp., HTC: "Advanced Supersonic Technology Concept Study Reference Characteristics," NASA CR 132374, Dec. 1973.
	135.	Lush, P.A. and R.H. Burrin, "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise: An Experimental Investigation of Jet Noise Variation with Velocity and Temperature," Report USAF APL TR-72-53, Vol. 5, July 1972.
	136.	Macitti, V.R., "System Integration Studies for Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," NASA TM X-72781, Sept. 1975.
		R-12

•

.

.

ドワインンバ

 $\widehat{}$

- 137. Macitti, V.R. and F.E. McLean, "Recent Developments in NASA's Supersonic Cruise Aircraft Research (SCAR) Program," Paper Pres. at Princeton Univ. Conf. on the Future of Aeronautical Transp., 10-11 Nov. 1975.
- 138. Maestrello, L., "On the Relationship between Acoustic Energy Density Flux near the Jet and Far-field Acoustic Intensity," Paper 73-988 Pres. at AIAA Aeroacoustics Conf., Seattle, 15-17 Oct. 1973.
- 139. Maestrello, L., "Apparatus and Method for Jet Noise Suppression Patent Application," NASA Case LAR-11903-1, N77-15036, 23 Dec. 1976.
- 140. Maestrello, L. and E. McDaid, "Acoustic Characteristics of a High Subsonic Jet," Paper 70-234 Pres. at AIAA 8th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., New York, 19-21 Jan. 1970.
- 141. Maestrello, L. and E. McDaid, "Nearfield Characteristics of a High Subsonic Jet," AIAA Paper 71-155 Pres. at AIAA 9th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., New York, 25-27 Jan. 1971.
- 142. Maestrello, L. and Pao, S.P., "New Evidence of the Mechanisms of Noise Generation and Radiation of a Subsonic Jet," J. Acoust. Soc. Amer., Vol. 57, No. 4 (April 1975), pp. 958-960.
- 143. Manro, M.E., "Supersonic Pressure Measurements and Comparison of Theory to Experiment for an Arrow-Wing Configuration," NASA CR-145046, Nov. 1976.
- 144. McLemore, H.C. and L.P. Parett, "Low-Speed Wind Tunnel Tests of a One-Tenth Scale Model of a Blended-Arrow Advanced Supersonic Transport," NASA TM X-72671, Mar. 1975.
- 145. Morino, L. and C.C. Kuo, "Subsonic Potential Aerodynamics for Complex Configurations: A General Theory," AIAA J. Vol. 12, No. 2 (Feb. 1974), pp. 191-197.
- 146. Morris, O.A., "Subsonic and Supersonic Aerodynamic Characteristics of a Supersonic Cruise Fighter Model with a Twisted and Cambered Wing with 74 Deg. Sweep," NASA TM X-3530. Aug. 1977.
- 147. Morris, S.J. et al., "Assessment of Variable-Cycle Engines for MACH 2.7 Supersonic Transports: Status Report," NASA TM X-73977, Nov. 1976.

A server and a server of the s

7777

R-13

والمرور المراجع والمرجوع المرهب والم

- 148. Mortlock, A.K., "Comparison of ARP 876 Noise Predictions with Measured Concorde Noise Levels," British Aircraft Corp. Ltd., Commercial Aircraft Div. Acoustic Memo: 388, 28 June 1977.
- 149. Nagamatsu, H.T. and G. Horvay, "Supersonic Jet Noise," Paper 70-237 Pres. at AIAA 8th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., New York, 19-21 Jan. 1970.
- 150. NASA, "Aeronautical Propulsion," NASA SP-381, N75-31068. NASA Conf. held Cleveland, 13-14 May 1975.
- 151. NASA Proc. of the SCAR Conference, Part 1, 9-12 Nov. 1976. Langley Research Ctr., VA. 2 Vol. NASA CP 001-Pt. 1, N77-17996-18018.
- 152. NASA Proc. of the SCAR Conference, Part 2, NASA CP-001-Pt. 2, N77-18019, N77-18044, 1976.
- 153. NASA/Langley Research Center, "The Relative Annoyance of SST Noise Exposure," Task Assignment No. 7. NASA Technical Initiator: D. Stephens. BBN Contract: K. Pearsons. Final Report in progress.
- 154. NASA, "Concorde Noise-Induced Building Vibrations International Airport Dulles - Final Report," NASA TM-74083, Staff, Langley Research Ctr., Sep. 1977.
- 155. Packman, A.B., H. Kozlowski, and O. Gutierrez, "Jet Noise Characteristics of Unsuppressed Duct Burning Turbofan Exhaust System," Paper 76-149 Pres. at AIAA 14th Aerospace Sciences Mtg., Wash., D.C., 26-28 Jan. 1976.
- 156. Pao, S.P., "Analytical Properties of Noise Generating Mechanisms in a Supersonic Jet Exhaust Flow," NASA CR-1848, Wyle Laboratories, May 1971.
- 157. Plumblee, H.E. and P.E. Doak, "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Vol. 1: Summary of Supersonic Jet Noise Studies," Report USAF APL TR-72-53, V. 1, July 1972.
- 158. Plumblee, H.E. and R.H. Burrin, "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Vol. 2: Future Studies for Definition of Supersonic Jet Noise Generation and Reduction Mechanisms, Report USAF APL TR-72-53, V. 2, July 1972.

コーフィ

R-14

·····

- 159. Plumblee, H.E., Jr., "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Vol. 1: Summary," Report USAF APL TR-76-65, V. 1, Sept. 1976.
- 160. Plumblee, H.E, Jr. et al., "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Volume 2: Studies of Jet Noise, Turbulence Structure and Laser Velocimetry," Report USAF APL TR-76-65, V. 2, 23 June 1976.
- 161. Powell, C.A., "Judgments of Relative Noisiness of a Supersonic Transport and Several Commercial-Service Aircraft," NASA TN D-8434, June 1977.
- 162. Preisser, J.S., "Results from an Exploratory Study of Airframe Noise on a Small-Scale Model of a Supersonic Transport Concept," NASA TM X-7402, April 1977.
- 163. Radkey, R.L., H.R. Welge, and R.L. Roensch, "Aerodynamic Design of a Mach 2.2. Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," Paper 76-955 Pres. at AIAA Aircraft Systems and Technology Mtg., Dallas, 27-29 Sept. 1976.
- 164. Reilly, Jr., Letter to Milton F. Myers (FAA) from J.D. Reilly 31 Oct. 1977.
- 165. Roberts, L., "Directions in Civil Aviation, 1980-2000. National Aeronautics and Space Administration," Acta Astronautica, Vol. 4, Jan./Feb. 1977, p. 7-14.
- 166. Rowe, W.T., E.S. Johnson, and R.A. McKinnon, "Technology Status of Jet Noise Suppression Concepts for Advanced Supersonic Transports," Paper 77-833, Pres. at AIAA/SAE Joint Propulsion Conf., Orlando, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
- 167. Sabatella, J.A., "Advanced Supersonic Propulsion Study: Final Report," NASA CR-134633, Pratt & Whitney Aircraft Report 4671, Jan. 1974.
- 168. Sakata, I.F. and G.W. Davis, "Evaluation of Structural Design Concepts for an Arrow-Wing Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," NASA CR-2667, N77-25581, April 1977.
- 169. Schnakenburg, E.O., "B-1 Technology Applications to Advanced Transport Design," SAE Paper Pres. at SAE Air Transp. Mtg., Miami, 24-26 Apr. 1973.

170. Shivers, J.P., L.C. McLemore, and P.L. Coe, "Low-Speed W/T Investigation of a Large-Scale Advanced Arrow-Wing SST Config. with Engines Mounted Above the Wing for Upper Surface Blowing," NASA TM X-7276, publicly released 2 Aug. 1977.

0101

R-15

- 171. Shrout, B.L., "Aerodynamic Characteristics at Mach numbers from 0.6 to 2.16 of a Supersonic Cruise Fighter Config. with a Design Mach Number of 1.8," NASA TM X-3559, Sep. 1977.
- 172. Sigalla, A., L.J. Runyan and E.J. Kane, "The Overland Supersonic Transport with Low Sonic Boom - A Feasibility Study," Acta Astronautica, Vol. 4, Jan. Feb. 1977, pp. 163-179.
- 173. Society of Automotive Engineers, "Gas Turbine Jet Exhaust Noise Prediction, Aerospace Recommended Practice," ARP 876, March 1978, and previous edition, July 1965.
- 174. Speakman, J.D., R.G. Powell and R.A. Lee, "Community Noise Exposure Resulting from Aircraft Operations, Vol. 2. Acoustic Data on Military Aircraft: Air Force Bomber/ Cargo Aircraft," AMRL-TR-73-110, Vol. 2, November 1977.
- 175. Stone, JR., "Interim Prediction Method for Jet Noise," NASA TM X-71618, 1974.

.

うつうく

- 176. Stone, R., "An Empirical Model for Inverted-Velocity-Profile Jet Noise Prediction," NASA TM-73838, Technical Paper Pres. at 94th Mtg. Acoust. Soc. Amer., Miami, 13-16 Dec. 1977.
- 177. Strelow, R., Formal Testimony Submitted for the Record by R. Strelow, Asst. Administrator for Air & Waste Mgmt., EPA, at Concorde Supersonic Transport Hearings (DOT), 5 Jan. 1976.
- 178. Swan, W.C. and Klees, G.W., "Prospects for Variable Cycle Engines," JANNAF/AIAA/SAE Paper CPI-228, Nov. 1972.
- 179. Szeliga, R. and R.D. Allan, "Advanced Supersonic Technology Propulsion System Study Final Report," NASA CR-143634, July 1974.
- 180. Tanna, H.K. et al., "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Vol. 3: Turbulent Mixing Noise Data," Report USAF APL TR-76-65, V. 3, Sep. 1976.
- 181. Tanna, H.K. et al., "The Generation and Radiation of Supersonic Jet Noise. Vol. 4: Shock Associated Noise Data," Report USAF APL TR-76-65, V. 4, Sep. 1976.

R-16

and a second second

Summer and second second

182.	Trucco, H., "Study of Variable Cycle Engines Equipped with Supersonic Fans," NASA CR-134777, Sep. 1975.
183.	Tyson, R.M. et al., "Methods for Comparative Evaluations of Propulsion System Designs for Supersonic Aircraft," NASA CR-135110, N77-18156, June 1976.
184.	US Council on Environmental Quality, "Environmental Quality 1975: The Sixth Annual Report of the Council," pp. 88-89.
185.	US Council on Environmental Quality, "Environmental Quality 1976: The Seventh Annual Report of The Council," pp. 53-54.
186.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation, FAR Part 36, "Noise Standards: Aircraft Type Certification," <i>Federal Register, 34</i> , F.R. 18355, Nov. 18, 1969.
187.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation/FAA, Civil Supersonic Airplane Noise Requirements Submitted to FAA by EPA (14 CFR Parts 36,91): (Docket No. 10494; Notice No. 75-15) 40 FR 14093, No. 61, Fri., 28 Mar. 1975.
188.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation, FAA, "Concorde Supersonic Transport Aircraft, Final Environmental Impact Statement, Vol. 1," Sep. 1975.
189 .	U.S. Dept. of Transportation, FAA, "Concorde Supersonic Transport Aircraft, Final Environmental Impact Statement, Vol. 1-Addendum," Feb. 1975.
190.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation/FAA, "Concorde Monitoring Summary Report, Dulles International Airport, May 1976- May 1977," Sep. 1977.
191.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation/FAA, "Concorde Monitoring Summary Report, John F. Kennedy International Airport, Nov. 1977-Nov. 1978," Jan. 1979.
192.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation, FAA, "Final Environmental Impact Statement Noise Regulation and Type Certification Alternatives for Civil Supersonic Aircraft," June 1978.
193.	U.S. Dept. of Transportation, FAA, "Noise Regulation and Type Certification of Civil Supersonic Aircraft, Final Environmental Impact Statement-Vol. II, Appendices and Substantive Comments," June 1978.

•

•

R-17

コクオ シンフィ

- 194. U.S. Dept. of Transportation/FAA, "Civil Supersonic Airplane Noise and Sonic Boom Requirements and Decision on EPA Proposals," (14 CFR Parts 36 and 71) (Docket Nos. 10494 and 15376) 43 FR No. 126, Thrus., 29 June 1978.
- 195. U.S. Dept. of Transportation, FAA, "Subsonic Transport Category Large Airplanes and Turbojet Powered Airplanes -Noise Limits and Acoustical Change Requirements: Aircraft Noise Measurement and Evaluation Specifications, *Federal Register*, Thurs., Mar. 2, 1978 Part II; and Amendment 7, *Federal Register*, Thursday, Mar. 3, 1977.
- 196. U.S. Dept. of Transportation, "FAA Advisory Circular No. 36-1B," Dec. 5, 1977, "Certified Airplane Noise Levels."
- 197. U.S. Dept. of Transportation, "FAA Advisory Circular No. 36-2A," Dec. 6, 1978, "Measured or Estimated (Uncertificated) Airplane Noise Levels."
- 198. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, "Noise Measurement of Concorde 02 Approach and Takeoff at Dallas-Ft. Worth and Dulles International Airports," EPA Report 550/9-74-013, Aug. 1974.
- 199. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, "National Measure of Aircraft Noise Impact through the Year 2000," EPA Report 550/9-75-024, June 1975.
- 200. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Additional Material submitted to W.T. Coleman (Secy. Transportation) in Response to DOT's Post-Hearing Statement and Substantive Points made by Witnesses at Hearing, dated 13 Jan. 1975.
- 201. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, "Aircraft Noise Certification Rule for Supersonic Civil Aircraft," Project Report 24 Jan. 1975.
- 202. U.S. General Accounting Office, "The Concorde: Results of a Supersonic Aircraft's Entry into the United States," Report CED-77-131, PB-272006/8, General Accounting Office Community and Economic Development Div., 15 Sep. 1977.
- 203. U.S. Senate/Committee on Commerce, Oversight Hearings on the SST. 20 Feb. 1976. Hearing before Committee on Commerce, 94th Congr. 2nd Session.

R-18

والمراجعة فتعقف متعافد معاديا مترا

204.	Weber, R.J., "The NASA Research Program on Propulsion for Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," NASA TM X-71666 Proposed Pres. at Nat. Transp. Mtg., Hartford, CT, 6-9 May 1975 sponsored by SAE.
205.	Weber, R.J., "NASA Propulsion Research for Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," Astronautics and Aeronautics, May 1976.
206.	Wesler, J.E., "Comparative Noise and Structural Vibration Levels from Concorde and Subsonic Aircraft," Noise Expo: Procs. of the Tech. Program held Atlanta, GA, 30 April- 2 May 1975, pp. 344-350.
207.	Wetmore, W.C., "Noise Seen Affecting Next SST Design," Aviation Week & Space Technol., 15 Jan. 1978, pp. 45-54.
208.	Whitlow, John B. Jr., "Effect of Airplane Characteristics and Takeoff Noise and Field Length Constraints on Engine Cycle Selection for a Mach 2.32 Cruise Application," NASA TM X-71865, January 1976.
209.	Wiggins, J.H., "Sound and Vibration Measurements for Con- corde Supersonic Transport and Subsonic Jet Aircraft," Report DOT-TST-75-21, July 1974.
210.	Willis, E.A. and A.D. Welliver, "Supersonic Variable-Cycle Engines," NASA TM X-73524, 26-29 July 1976.
211.	Willis, E., "Variable Cycle Engines for Supersonic Cruise Aircraft," Paper No. 7 in "Variable Generating and Multi- cycle Engines," Proceedings of 48th meeting of AGARD Pro- pulsion and Energetics Panel, 6-9 Sep. 1976, AD/A040189.
212.	Wilson, J.R. and B.R. Wright, "Airframe/Engine Integration with Variable-Cycle Engine," Paper 77-798 Pres. at AIAA/ SAE 13th Joint Propulsion Conf., Orlando, FL, 11-13 July 1977.
213.	<pre>Wright, B.R., "Rationale for a Second Generation Supersonic Transport," Acta Astronautica, Vol. 4, Jan./Feb. 1977, pp. 145-162.</pre>
	* * *

,--

1

.

R-19

i